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One of the driving forces behind the growth  
of DNV is our global footprint. Almost 300  
offices in 100 countries enable us to be close  
to our customers and to share best practices  
and quality standards throughout the world. 

We continue to strengthen our presence  
in emerging markets and regions. In Greater  
China alone, we now have 36 offices in 20 cities.
DNV is headquartered in Høvik, Norway.

Worldwide presence

Bachelor 38%
Master 37%
Doctorate 5%
2-year college 4%
Technical 1%
Other 18%

Norway 28%
Asia and Oceania 28%
Europe 23%
Americas 13%
Nordic and Baltic 
countries 4%
Middle East 3%
Africa 1%
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1864 300
established in 1864 dnV  
is a private, independent 
foundation with the purpose  
of safeguarding life, property 
and the environment.

with 300 offices in 100 countries, 
dnV serves customers in a wide 
range of industries worldwide, 
including shipping, and oil and gas. 8,694 18%the number of  

employees increased  
by 13% to a total of  
8,694 worldwide by 2008.
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figure 3  dnV growth

revenue increased by  
18% to noK 9,560 million. 
the average annual growth 
in revenue over the last  
four years has been 12.7%.
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To safeguard life, property  
and the environment

Global impact for a safe  
and sustainable future

We build trust and confidence 
We never compromise on quality or integrity
We are committed to teamwork and innovation
We care for our customers and each other
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DNV is a global provider of services for 
managing risk. We help our customers 
achieve sustainable performance and 
turn risks into rewards. 

DNV has demonstrated excellence in 
identifying, assessing and managing risk 
since 1864. We take leadership through 
innovation and technology and non-
compromising standards of quality  
and integrity. As an independent foun-
dation we are committed to balancing 
the needs of business and society.
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How we make a difference

Taking risks is imperative for success  
in business. The aim is to have a good 
overview of the most critical risks and 
manage them professionally, not to 
eliminate them. 
 DNV is a global provider of services for 
managing risk. Our understanding of 
technology, our risk approach and our 
industry knowledge, make us a valuable 
partner for our customers. We assist them 
in identifying, assessing and managing their 
operational, financial and societal risks. 
 We provide decision support for our 
customers, whether we classify a ship, 
certify a food company’s management 
system or advise on how to best maintain 
an aging oil platform. So they can make 
decisions with increased confidence in  
this complex risk environment.

DnV was esTablisheD in 1864 by 
Norwegian marine insurance companies  
in need of an independent party with 
skills to inspect the technical condition  

ToDay, DnV is one of the world’s lead-
ing classification societies. As such, we set 
standards for how a vessel or an offshore 
unit should be designed, constructed and 
operated in order to safeguard life, prop-
erty and the environment. We verify and 
document compliance with standards and 
regulations throughout the life cycle of  
a vessel or offshore structure. 
 DNV has also become one of the world’s 
leading certification bodies, accredited  
to perform certification services to 
national and international standards  
such as ISO standards.

boTh as a classificaTion and certi-
fication company, we are an independent 
third party providing trust and confidence 
for our customers’ stakeholders. We do 
this by making sure that companies comply 
with safety, quality, and environmental 
standards and regulations. Some of our 
services extend beyond this third party role, 
advising companies on how to achieve 
and maintain sustainable performance. 
 
We have been authorised by governments 
and national authorities to do this in many 
circumstances. As such, we perform a bal-
ancing act between business and society. 

 We help our customers identify, 
assess and manage their most critical 
risks, helping them achieve and 
maintain sustainable performance.

 The aim is to have a good 
overview of the most critical risks 
and manage them professionally, 
not to eliminate them. 

Verification means confirmation  
that a component, product, plant or 
system is in compliance with specified 
requirements. Verification can be done 
by companies themselves related to 
their own facilities or by a qualified 
party hired to perform the task on 
behalf of the company or any other 
interested party. 

Classification is a special type of certi-
fication particularly applied to confirm  
that maritime structures and facilities 
comply with requirements.Classification 
implies that the requirements are set  
by the classification society, i.e. the same  
third party that performs the classification.  
The requirements are specified in the DNV 
Rules. These comprise safety, reliability  
and environmental requirements that 
maritime structures in international  
waters must comply with.

Certification is a process where  
a third party confirms that a com-
ponent, product, plant or system 
complies with specified requirements. 
Most often the certification confirms 
compliance with national or inter-
national standards, but also other 
requirements may be specified. 

veriFiCation ClassiFiCationCertiFiCationDNV’s services for 
managing risk span  
over a large number  
of services. Here, we  
have defined three  
terms that are very  
often used in describing 
some of our activities.

of merchant vessels. In order to charge  
the ship owners the right premium, they 
needed a reliable assessment of the risk  
of damage to or loss of a vessel’s cargo or 
of the vessel itself. Since then, our core 
competence has been to identify, assess 
and advise on how to manage risk. Not 
only in the maritime sector, and not on 
behalf of insurance companies, but in a 
wide range of industries and on behalf  
of both private and public stakeholders. 
We applied the skills and experience  
gained in the maritime sector to assist the  
energy industry in oil and gas exploration  
in the North Sea from the early 1970s. 
Later, DNV diversified into the certification 
business in the 1980s, mainly in the field 
of management system certification.

 Both as a classification and certification
 company, we are an independent  
third party providing trust and confidence  
to our customers’ stakeholders.

Companies are facing ever greater expectations and complexities 
due to increased globalisation, environmental concerns and  
IT vulnerability. This, together with stricter regulations, growing 
demand for transparency, and zero-tolerance for failure, create  
a whole new risk environment.

managing risk
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DNV is one of the world’s 
leading classification  
societies. We assist our 
customers within the mari-
time industry to manage 
their risks in all phases  
of a ship’s life, through 
ship classification, fuel 
testing and a range of 
technical, business risk, 
environmental and com-
petency-related services.

DNV is a leading cer-
tification body and  
global provider of risk 
management services.  
We work to help our 
customers create trust  
and confidence and  
assure a sustainable 
business performance.

Maritime Business  
Assurance

Energy IT Global  
Services

Independent 
business units

We provide advanced 
cross-disciplinary compe-
tence within technology, 
operations, management 
and risk for companies 
across the energy sector. 
Our solutions enable 
companies to manage 
business risks and 
enhance safety, environ-
mental and business 
performance.

We help companies 
achieve more effective  
IT risk management.  
Our consultants help 
create greater efficiency 
and predictability of 
IT-dependent processes 
and software. We serve 
primarily the finance, 
maritime, energy, tele-
communications and  
automotive sectors.

Climate Change 

Established to be a powerhouse 
for growing our climate change 
related services. The main 
activity is validation and veri-
fication of CDM projects and 
emission trading schemes.  

Research & Innovation

We identify technology trends 
and build new competence and 
services that shall ensure DNV’s 
future growth and sustainability.

Software

We develop software systems  
for design, strength assessment, 
risk analysis, asset life cycle 
management and knowledge- 
based engineering.

B
usiness areas

 Classification according to  
DNV Rules and IMO Regulations  
– for all ship types

 Classification / certification of mate-
rials, equipment and marine systems

 Safety management certification
 Technical, management and  
competence advisory services

 Fuel testing

 Certification
 Verification
 Assessments
 Training
 Risk management and  
tailored services

 Classification of mobile offshore units 
 Verification, inspection and testing
 Technology qualification
 Enterprise Risk Management
 Safety, health and environmental  
risk management

 Asset risk management

 IT risk management
 Software and systems process 
improvement

 IT service process improvement
 Compliance and Service Level 
management

 dnv.com / focus / climate_change

 dnv.com / moreondnv /  
research_innovation

 dnv.com / services / software

main serviCes main serviCesmain serviCes main serviCes read more:DNV is organised into  
four business areas.  
In addition, three focus  
areas are organised  
into independent 
business units. 
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Turning risks into rewards

Jostein Furnes (3)
Corporate Finance  
and Controllership

Appointed CFO in 2006. 
He was employed in 
DNV Maritime in 1988 
and has held various 
financial positions 
within this field both 
abroad and at Høvik.

Cecilie heuch (4)
Corporate HR  
and Organisation

Director of Corporate 
HR and Safety, Health 
and the Environment 
since May 2006.  
Previously worked  
for Norsk Hydro in 
corporate staff, Hydro 
Aluminium and in  
the fertiliser division  
(now Yara) in Norway 
and Italy.

tor e. svensen (5)
Chief Operating 
Officer, Maritime

COO of DNV Maritime 
since 1 January 2003.  
He was appointed 
deputy CEO of DNV in 
May 2006, and in June 
2007 he took up the 
position as chairman  
of IACS (International 
Association of Class 
Societies), a position  
he held for 12 months.

henrik o. madsen (1)
President and CEO

Appointed President  
& CEO of DNV in 2006.
He was employed in 
DNV in 1982 - and has 
held senior positions  
in all of DNV’s business 
areas, both at Høvik 
and abroad.

(2) (3) (4) (1) (5) (6) (7)

annie Combelles (6) 
Chief Operating Officer, 
IT Global Services 

COO of DNV IT Global 
Services since 2006. 
Previously CEO of Q-Labs 
Group. Former Elected 
Member of the Board  
of Governors of IEEE 
Computer Society and 
Member of the IEEE 
Software Editorial 
Board.

remi eriksen (2)
Chief Operating  
Officer, Energy 

COO of DNV Energy 
and Member of the 
Executive Board since 
2006. Joined DNV in 
1993. International 
management respon-
sibility since 1998.

Bjørn k. haugland (7)
Chief Operating Officer, 
Business Assurance

COO of DNV Business 
Assurance since 2008 
(former DNV Industry). 
Former Regional Manager 
and Country Chair for 
Region Greater China. 
Chairman of the Board  
of DNV’s Climate Change 
Unit and Co-Chairman  
of the Board of DNV’s 
Sustainability Center  
in Beijing.  

The worlD economy is now in its worst 
recession since World War II. Everyone needs 
to address the challenges posed by the fin-
ancial turmoil we all face. But this must not  
be at the cost of losing sight of the future. 
Some challenges will remain also after the 

world economy recovers, like for example 
the effects of climate change.
 Those who manage the immediate risks 
properly will be better prepared to seize 
opportunities later. The credit crunch has 
clearly revealed that we live in a world 

with global interdependence. Businesses 
need partners who understand this global 
context and can help them manage the inher-
ent risks in dealing with global operations, 
global supply chains and global markets. 

we in DnV wanT To be there for our 
customers – also when times are tough.  
In this context, I feel that the strategies and 
services offered by DNV have never been 
more relevant. DNV came out of 2008 in  
a better position than ever to help our 
customers operate a sustainable business 
and improve their operations. We delivered 
strong financial results and our solid finan-
cial platform enables us to further invest 
in research and service development to carry 
out our strategy. We have had significant 
focus on incorporating environmental and 
corporate responsibility related services 
across our total service portfolio. Going 
forward, we will continue to step up our 
ability to help customers achieve and 
maintain sustainable performance.

The fuTure is noT cancelleD. The 
winners of tomorrow are those who 
manage the current situation by improv-
ing operations, while continuing to 
address the long term issues: Climate 
change, ethical business, corporate 
responsibility and safe operations. 

Henrik O. Madsen 
President and CEO

2008 started with full order books, souring energy prices and  
a fierce fight for talent. The year ended with a financial turmoil 
and economies around the world slowing down dramatically. 
Nobody knows how long the financial turmoil will last.  
What we do know is this: Now is the time to take action  
to be prepared for the time when the crisis has passed.

president’s introduCtion

 management. The Executive Board is the
 President and CEO’s management team, 
dealing with strategic issues, budgeting and plan-
ning. It consists of the Chief Operating Officers  
from the four business areas and two Corporate 
Directors in addition to the President and CEO.
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evaluation of DNV’s investment policy 
against the ethical guidelines of the 
Norwegian Government Pension Fund 
Global.
 Following the 29 January 2008 inspec-
tion of DNV and four other European-
based classification societies (BV, GL, LR 
and RINA) and the office of the Interna-
tional Association of Classification Societies 
(IACS) by the EU’s Directorate for Compe-
tition (DG/COMP), DNV has throughout 
2008 put significant resources on this case. 
Considerable effort has been put into 
replying to the Commission’s request for 
information, and DNV continues to co-
operate with DG/COMP. As of December 
2008, the matter is not yet closed.

strategy
The strategy revision in June 2008 focused 
on the main changes to the previous 
strategy. These include increased focus  
on climate change services, food and 
beverage, healthcare and a systematic  
risk management of own activities. 
 The maritime and energy sectors rep-
resent mainstream DNV activities and 
will continue their efforts based on the  
main elements of their existing strategic 
directions. The two business areas, which 
represent close to 73% of DNV’s business 
volume, have a continuously high manage-
ment attention. The aim is to further grow 
their market positions and competencies.
  Accredited management system certi-
fication is a line of service that is exposed 
to extensive competition from both global 
certification companies and local service 
providers. Based on the approach of Risk 

DNV is well positioned to help companies 
meet these demands. The growth in the 
company’s revenue of 18% in 2008 dem-
onstrates the demand for services to 
identify, assess and manage risk.
 DNV has strengthened its position in  
all its main areas of activity in 2008. With 
growth in both total revenue and number 
of employees, the company has maintained 
a sound profit margin. This ensures a strong 
financial foundation, which is required  
to secure the independence and integrity 
of DNV’s operations. 
 More than 20% of all ships contracted 
in 2008, measured in gross tonnes, were 
ordered to DNV class. This represents a 
strong position in a year where the first 
nine months were characterised by a high 
number of new contracts, while the last 
three months of the year witnessed a sharp 
decrease in contracting and cancellations 
of newbuilding contracts. A relentless 
focus on quality has ensured DNV of close 
to 16% market share of the world fleet. 
Global Port State detention statistics 

Based Certification, DNV has succeeded  
in differentiating itself as a certification 
company providing added value. Consid-
erable efforts will be put into further 
streamlining the certification process  
in order to be a truly global provider  
of consistent certification services. 
 Accredited certification represents an 
important part of DNV’s services to the 
food and beverage sector. To meet the 
ambition of building an industry position 
in this sector, a set of services beyond 
quality and environmental management 
system certification is required. Trace-
ability, supply chain risk management  
and food safety are services developed  
in response to clear needs in the market.
 Patient safety and quality improvement 
in hospitals are needs that DNV intends  
to meet by introducing its risk-based 
approach in the healthcare sector.  
In UK, risk management auditing is 
performed in order to improve patient 
safety at several hundred hospitals, as 
part of an agreement with the British 
Ministry of Health.
 The US Centres for Medicare & Medicaid 
Services in September approved DNV as 
the first new hospital accreditation organ-
isation in the US for more than 40 years. 
 The World Health Organization is 
actively promoting safety and security  
for high risk laboratories based on DNV-
developed standards and rating tools.
 A multi-dimensional and company  
wide system for identifying and assessing 
important areas of risk exposure to DNV 
is in place. Findings are important input 
both for management and for the Board, 

who are both informed on a regular basis. 
The objective of the system is to improve 
handling of risk in important decisions 
and in day-to-day operations.  

organisation
On the first of January 2009, the business 
area DNV Industry changed its name to 
DNV Business Assurance in order to better 
reflect that the essence of the business 
area’s services to customers is to assure 
sustainable business performance.  
 An organisational structure, with one 
branch globally responsible for the food 
and beverage industry, has been put in 
place to develop and deliver services in 
the food and beverage sectors in an even 
more focused manner.
 A dedicated Independent Business Unit 
(IBU) has been established to ensure a 
focused approach to developing and 
delivering services in the field of climate 
change. One important line of service  
is the validation and verification of CO2 
quotas in the various international and 
regional quota trading schemes. Energy 
efficiency, cleaner energies, sustainable 
mobility and Carbon Capture and Storage 
(CCS) are other service areas where DNV  
is developing a position based on its 
strong technological knowledge and 
extensive auditing skills. 
 DNV is establishing a Sustainability 
Centre in Beijing in order to be better 
positioned to offer sustainability services 
to the Chinese industry. There is an 
increasing interest for services in the 
fields of environment, energy efficiency, 
risk management and sustainability.

show that DNV-classed vessels are among 
the ones with the lowest detention ratio. 
This is a key parameter to measure quality. 
DNV’s ambition is to have the lowest deten-
tion ratio among the classification societies. 
 Technology qualification, risk assess-
ment, asset management and offshore 
classification are services that have con-
tributed to an unprecedented growth  
of 25% for DNV in the energy sector.  
The sharp fall in the oil price in the last 
months of 2008 did not lead to substan-
tial loss of revenue, indicating that there 
appears to be a continued demand for 
DNV’s line of services. Renewable and 
cleaner energies represent considerable 
growth potentials.
 Accredited management system certi-
fication represents close to 14% of DNV’s 
total revenue, positioning the company 
among the top three certification bodies 
world-wide. Certification in the fields of 
quality, environment, safety, IT security, 
food safety and healthcare builds the 
DNV brand among more than 60,000 

customers on all continents. 
 DNV is market leader in the validation 
and verification of CO2 emissions as part 
of the quota trading mechanisms under 
the Kyoto Protocol and other regional and 
local schemes, with a market share of Clean 
Development Mechanism projects of 48%. 
Services in the field of Corporate Respon-
sibility are also in increasing demand.

truly independent
In order to serve the purpose of “Safe-
guarding Life, Property and the Envi-
ronment”, DNV needs both competent 
employees and a strong financial basis.  
In 2008, DNV delivered strong financial 
results; with a growth in total revenue of 
18% and a net profit of NOK 642 million. 
At year-end 2008, DNV’s equity ratio  
was 54%. The number of employees 
showed a net increase of 1,003 to  
a total of 8,694 employees. 
 The Board of Directors acknowledges 
the hard work performed by a dedicated 
staff. The Board regards DNV’s market 
position as strong, and financial status  
as satisfactory. This gives the company  
a robust platform to meet the downturn 
in the global economy. 
 In addition to the financial reporting, 
DNV is also committed to report on 
environmental and social aspects based 
on the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI).  
In 2008, the reporting shifted from level C 
to a level B in the GRI system.
  The Board of Directors initiated an eval-
uation of the Board Mandate against the 
Norwegian Code of Practice for Corporate 
Governance. The Board also ensured an 

Board of Directors’ report

agreement with the norwegian 
university of science and tech-
nology. DNV signs its largest university 
agreement ever with the Norwegian 
University of Science and Technology 
(NTNU). DNV finances ten professorships, 
covering four main areas of cooperation: 
Arctic technology, marine transport, 
renewable and environmentally-friendly 
energy, and integrated operations.  
The financial framework is more  
than NOK 10 million per year and  
is initially valid for 5-6 years. 

acquisition of us-based wind  
energy company. US-based wind  
energy consultancy Global Energy 
Concepts (GEC) was acquired, posi-
tioning DNV as a major wind energy 
service provider, covering the entire 
lifecycle of offshore or onshore wind 
projects. GEC comprised close to  
100 employees.

dnv classes first ever Fpso in the  
us gulf of mexico. Petrobras of Brazil 
awarded DNV the classification contract 
for the first Floating Production, Storage 
and Offloading vessel (FPSO) ever in  
the US Gulf of Mexico. 

dnv signs contract with nord stream
Crossing the waters of five Baltic Sea 
countries, Nord Stream will be an impor-
tant gas pipeline to carry natural gas  
to Europe. It is being built to DNV’s 
recognised pipeline standard and  
will transport enough gas to supply  
25 million European households.

In a year of considerable financial and business volatility and thus 
an increasingly complex risk environment, the need to manage 
technical, societal, market and business risk is more urgent than 
ever. Companies are expected to run safe, reliable and sustainable 
operations in an environment of uncertainty, and they are 
challenged by society’s zero tolerance for failure. 

strong growth in 2008 

Q2Q1 the year’s highlights: 2008 was another
 eventful year for DNV. The following  
few selected highlights show some major  
achievements from the year and illustrate  
the diversity of our operations.
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14001 standard in 2008. Projects have  
also been carried out to map the environ-
mental impact DNV’s services have on  
the customers’ environmental footprints.
 Close to 4,000 employees have been 
engaged in improving their own environ-
mental footprint, funded by an environ-
mental initiative launched early 2008. 
NOK 40 million was made available for 
employees to introduce measures in their 
private lifes that would reduce emissions 
and improve the environment. Typical 
initiatives have been to buy bicycles, more 
energy-efficient home appliances, hybrid 
cars, solar-heated water tanks and 
improved insulation in houses.
 DNV’s own activities do not have signifi-
cant negative impact on the environment. 
Procedures for waste handling and energy 
savings have been introduced in the 
international network of offices as part  
of DNV’s environmental management 
system. A programme for continuous 
improvement is in place with regard to 
areas such as energy consumption and 
waste handling. In order to reduce the 
number of non-essential air flights, all 
flights are to be reported into a central 
database, and more meetings will be 
conducted as video conferences.

FinanCial perFormanCe 
Despite the difficulties in the global econ-
omy, DNV has delivered good financial 
performance and secured a solid and long-
term order reserve. DNV achieved operat-
ing revenue of NOK 9,560 million in 2008, 
NOK 1,434 million or 18% higher than in 
2007. All the business areas achieved growth 
in 2008, with the strongest growth coming 
from DNV Maritime and DNV Energy.
 In spite of the volatility in financial 
markets, operating profit increased from 
NOK 873 million in 2007 to NOK 1,188 
million in 2008. This represents an oper-
ating margin of 12%. The improvement  
in operating profit from 2007 to 2008  
is NOK 315 million or 36%, reflecting a 
sound underlying financial performance 
in the business areas.
 DNV does business in 70 currencies, and 
has subsidiaries and branch offices in close 
to 100 countries. During 2008 the volatility 
in the currency markets has been high, 
and in the latter part of the year the 
Norwegian kroner depreciated sharply 
compared to DNV’s basket of currencies, 
contributing positively to the 2008  
financial performance. The positive  
currency effects and positive develop-
ment in hedging cost is more than offset 

At the year-end 2008, DNV had 8,694 
employees, compared to 7,691 the previ-
ous year. 100 nationalities are represented 
in the staff. The turnover of personnel 
during 2008 was 9.0%, compared to 9.7% 
in 2007, and the sickness absence rate 
was 1.9%. Towards the end of 2008, the 
turnover of staff fell as a consequence  
of the downturn in the global economy. 
 In autumn 2008, one of DNV’s employees 
working for the Seattle office of DNV-GEC 
died in a field accident while at work for 
DNV in Texas. The Board wishes to express 
its condolences to the family and colleagues.
 An international attraction and reten-
tion project has contributed to an increase 
in systematic recruitment efforts world-
wide, leading to the achievement of ambi-
tious growth targets in most parts of DNV. 
The Board has encouraged an active and 
targeted recruitment policy, realising  
that talented new staff can be transferred  
to other units in the organisation when 
change is needed.
 DNV has an equal opportunity policy 
for all employees, irrespective of their 
nationality, gender or age. As a result  
of systematic efforts to improve diversity  
in the organisation, 66% of all managers  
are from countries outside Scandinavia.  
This is a slight increase compared with 
2007. The number of women in manage-
ment training programmes is rising, and 
the ratio of female managers is now at 
17.9%, compared with 15.6% in 2007.

environment
As part of its environmental commitment, 
DNV was certified according to the ISO 

by the negative return from financial 
investments, leading to net financial 
expenses of NOK 82 million in 2008.
 The tax cost in 2008 of NOK 465 million 
gives an average tax cost of 42%, an in-
crease from 38% in 2007, mainly caused 
by non-deductible losses from financial 
investments and non-tax deductible good-
will depreciations. The net profit after  
tax for 2008 is NOK 642 million, which 
can be compared to NOK 536 million  
in 2007 and NOK 546 million in 2006. 
 The cash flow for 2008 is negative, 
reflecting the growth and increase in 
working capital. Cash flow and credit 
collection will be two of the main focus 
areas for 2009. By year-end the unused 
available credit lines were NOK 750 million, 
which will expire in January 2009 and will 
not be renewed at present levels of pricing. 
DNV has also financial investments in 
equity funds and in the money market 
amounting to NOK 1,134 million. 
 DNV has a strong balance sheet with  

no interest-bearing debt, a total equity of 
NOK 4,545 million, or 54% of its total 
assets. The equity has been negatively 
affected with NOK 720 million, mainly 
due to increased pension liabilities and 
reduced return on plan assets.
 The accounts for the parent company, 
Stiftelsen Det Norske Veritas, show a loss 
after tax of NOK 103 million, which will 
be covered by other equity. The Board of 
Directors confirms that the going concern 
assumption applies and that the financial 
statement has been prepared under this 
assumption.

Future outlook
The Board of Directors believes that the 
demand for DNV’s services will continue 
to grow also in 2009, although at a slower 
pace than in 2008. The high order reserve 
at the start of 2009 is satisfactory for all 
business areas.
 The financial risks will be challenging 
and counterparty credit risk exposures 

will have attention as it relates to default 
risk of large customers and customer 
groups as well as possible credit collec-
tion problems related to the increasingly 
difficult market conditions for many  
of our customers. 
 The outlook beyond 2009 is more 
uncertain and varies among the business 
areas. To be prepared for a likely longer 
financial downturn DNV has identified 
certain measures and actions to better 
control and reduce the cost level. Strict 
control of manning levels and costs is  
one action implemented. With good 
collaboration between business areas  
and with transfer of competence and 
staff between these as demand dictates, 
the Board of Directors believes that  
DNV is well prepared to face some 
difficult years in the main markets.

Atle Bergshaven
Chairman

Audun Brandsæter

Mary Grace Anderson

Hilde M. TonneMaury Devine

Yan Ma

Sille Grjotheim

Niksa PadovanAxel C. Eitzen

approved to accredit hospitals in  
the us. DNV is approved by the US 
government’s Centers for Medicare 
and Medicaid (CMS) and becomes an 
Accreditation Organization (AO) for 
hospitals, the first such approval awarded  
in 40 years. The DNV hospital accredi-
tation programme, that integrates the 
inter-nationally recognised ISO 9001 
Quality Management System standard, 
enables hospitals to use their own 
innovative approach in meeting the 
NIAHOSM standard developed by DNV.

dnv petroleum services opens new 
laboratory: A new bunker testing facility 
was opened in the new DNV Benelux 
building in Barendrecht, the Netherlands, 
effectively expanding the company’s 
capacity to meet the foreseeable increased 
demand for fuel analytical services in 
Europe. The laboratory complements 
DNV’s four other fuel testing facilities 
located in Houston, Fujairah, Oslo  
and Singapore.

Cdm reaches milestone of 1,000 
projects. The Kyoto Protocol’s Clean 
Development Mechanism (CDM) regis-
tered its 1,000th project. An energy 
efficiency project in Andhra Pradesh, 
India, validated by DNV. 

120 years since first establishment in 
China. DNV celebrates 120 years in China. 
Greater China is DNV’s fastest growing 
region and largest operation outside 
Norway, with a network of 36 offices  
in 20 cities and nearly 800 employees.

Jardine technology ltd. acquired
Through its commercial software house, 
DNV acquired Jardine Technology Limited. 
This acquisition comes after DNV’s 
successful acquisition and integration  
of the Jardine & Associates Limited con-
sultancy company in 2005. This adds to  
DNV’s offering of software and services  
in the market for reliability, availability 
and maintainability simulations for the 
upstream oil and gas, and the down-
stream refining, petrochemical and 
chemicals industries.

world’s largest shipbuilding order  
to dnv Class. DNV was selected as class 
society for the building of 12 very large ore 
carriers (VLOC). The vessels will be built 
by Jiangsu Rongshen Heavy Industries Co. 
Ltd. for the Brazilian Companhia Vale do 
Rio Doce (Vale). Never before has a VLOC 
of this size (400,000 dwt) been built.

developing the first global guidelines  
for Co2 capture, transport and storage. 
DNV is facilitating, on behalf of the indus-
tries and authorities, the development of 
standards for capturing, transporting and 
storing CO2. Guideline for qualifying CO2 
capture technology was finalised in 2008. 
The remaining projects will be finalised in 2010.

Q4Q3

 Despite the difficulties in the global economy, DNV has delivered good
financial performance and secured a solid and long-term order reserve. DNV  
achieved operating revenue of NOK 9,560 million in 2008, NOK 1,434 million  
or 18% higher than in 2007. All the business areas achieved growth in 2008,  
with the strongest growth coming from DNV Maritime and DNV Energy.

The Board of Directors  
of Stiftelsen Det Norske Veritas, 
Høvik, 16 April 2009

John H. Wiik

Board oF direCtors’ report
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Board of Directors

atle Bergshaven 
Chairman of the Board 
of Directors. Member  
of the Board since 2003. 
Chairman and CEO of 
the Bergshav Group. 
Chairman of the Board 
of Sea4 AS and Member 
of the Boards of the 
Norwegian Hull Club 
and North of England  
P&I Club. Council 
member of Intertanko.

axel C. eitzen 
Member of the Board 
since 2004. Chairman  
of the Board, Gard AS. 
Chairman of the Board 
of the Executive Com-
mittee, Gard P&I Club. 
Chairman of the Board, 
Camillo Eitzen & Co ASA 
and of Eitzen Chemical 
ASA. Chairman of the 
Board, Eitzen Maritime 
Services ASA.

maury devine 
Member of the Board 
since 2000. Former 
President and Manag-
ing Director, Mobil 
Exploration Norway, 
Inc. Former Fellow of 
Harvard University. 
Member of the Board 
of FMC Technologies 
and JBT Corporation. 
Member of the Council 
on Foreign Relations.

yan ma 
Member of the Board 
since 2007. Elected by 
the Asian and American 
employees of DNV. 
Principle surveyor, Site  
& Project Manager, new-
building management  
in DNV North China. 
Joined DNV in 1996.

audun Brandsæter 
Member of the Board 
since 2002. Elected  
by the Norwegian 
employees of DNV. 
Principal Consultant, 
Safety Excellence and 
Risk Management, 
Maritime Solutions. 
Joined DNV in 1982.

mary grace anderson 
Member of the Board 
since 2005. Location 
Manager – Europe, 
Shell Exploration 
and Production 
International B.V. 
Member of the Board 
of A/S Norske Shell. 
Former Member of the 
Board of Shell UK Ltd. 
Former Member  
of the Board of 
Enterprise Oil Ltd.

sille grjotheim
Member of the Board 
since 2007. Elected  
by the Norwegian 
employees of DNV. 
Principal Engineer, Work 
Processes, Maritime. 
Joined DNV in 1993.

niksa padovan 
Member of the  
Board since 2007. 
Elected by the 
European employees  
of DNV. Principal 
Surveyor / Project 
Manager, Marseille 
station, DNV France. 
Joined DNV in 1982.

hilde m. tonne
Member of the Board 
since 2008. EVP in  
Telenor since 1 Sept  
2007, formerly VP in 
Hydro and Saga. MSc in 
Petroleum Technology. 
Member of the Board  
of Gassnova SF.

John h. wiik 
Member of the  
Board since 2003. 
Managing Director  
of the Norwegian  
Hull Club. Chairman
of the Board of  
Fana Sparebank.
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A safe and  
sustainable  
future?

The pressure is on for both for businesses 
and society to address these complex issues. 
With complexity come risks. The companies 
that are the most successful in identifying, 
assessing and managing these risks will not 
only continue to have a license to operate. 
They will turn risks into rewards and out-
perform their competitors.
 
DNV’s focus is to help companies manage 
societal, operational and business risks.  
At the same time, we have been authorised 
by governments and official institutions  

to verify or certify that businesses comply 
with regulations and standards. So as an 
independent third party, we feel a special 
responsibility to balance the needs of 
business and society.

aDDressing climaTe change
DNV offers a wide range of services that 
help businesses, organisations and govern-
ments improve performance in a safe and 
responsible manner. In 2008, we further 
intensified our focus on issues related to 
climate change. We do this in four ways:

we do is all about personal commitment.  
it is a nok 40 million fund set aside  
by dnv to partially finance employees’ 
personal environmental initiatives.  
50% of dnv’s employees globally have 
applied for funding of a personal project, 
which has an upper limit of nok 10,000  
per person, per year, regardless of location. 

more on page 22, 28, 34, 40 and 46.

 The world uses 30% more resources than the  
 Earth can replenish each year. People have never 
emitted more greenhouse gases into the atmosphere. 
Almost half of the world’s population lives in poverty. 
Safety of people and products is becoming increasingly 
difficult to handle in a globalised world. So are we  
really heading for a safer and more sustainable future?

Through our serVices. DNV has the 
greatest impact on reducing environmental 
footprint through the services we provide. 
Be it energy efficiency for ships, technol-
ogy qualification of carbon capture and  
storage technology, assessment of wind  
farm projects or certification of an  
environmental management system.  
more on page 20-45.

Through our operaTions: We actively 
use the ISO 14001 standard to continuously 
reduce the environmental impact of our 
own operations. more on page 52-54.

Through communiTies, regulaTions 
anD sTanDarDs: We take an active role 
in shaping and enhancing regulations and 
standards, and seek influence through 
many fora with an environmental agenda. 
more on page 56-57.

Through our personal behaViour: 
DNV has launched a programme that 
supports the personal commitment of our 
employees to reduce their environmental 
impact in daily life. We call it WE do. 

dnv.com / wedo

personal
Behaviour

operations

serviCes

regulatory/
Community

we do – personal Commitment
our impaCt on the environment
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We used our experienced engineers and 
cutting-edge technology to analyse what 
had happened, and why, and to propose 
changes to ensure it will not happen again. 
The German Shipowner Association, rep-
resenting some of the largest container 
ship operators, gave us valuable credit. 
“Transparency and openness are not 
common, as the industry normally hides 
itself after accidents. At the end, we  
state that DNV deserves all respect  
for the investigation and the way DNV 
dealt with it.”
 Learning from accidents represents  
one of the best ways of improving safety.

scheme to verify and certify its compe-
tence management system – to set up  
a system for its entire fleet of more  
than 100 vessels. 
 Asian seafarers are by far the largest 
group on board the global fleet.

An investigAtion carried out and 
published by the UK Marine Accident 
Investigation Branch in 2008 after the 
container ship Napoli accident a year 
earlier concluded there were human and 
technical reasons behind this accident. 
The vessel was built in 1991 and entered 
into DNV Class in 2002. 

biggest iron ore supplier, Brazilian Vale,  
in China by Jiangsu Rongsheng Heavy 
Industries. The biggest bulk carrier  
ever built so far is 365,000 dwt.
 The new DNV Class notation “Easy 
Loading” (introduced in 2008) will be 
applied to ensure the vessels’ safety  
and loading flexibility.
 
one benefit of lArge vessels is  
less pollution per transported units. 
Compared to a standard Capesize bulk 
carrier, a very large ore carrier will use 
some 30% less fuel and produce some 
30% less pollution per tonne carried.
 

More thAn 90% of All collisions, 
groundings and contact accidents in 
shipping involve human acts. Over the 
past few years, the global fleet has grown 
and the shortage of seafarers has put 
pressure on education and quality. Over 
the same years, the number of accidents 
has increased.
 We address what lies behind the 
human errors on board ships with the  
aid of our SeaSkill™ services. In 2008,  
we passed a major milestone when 
Singapore-based tanker operator Thome 
Ship Management became the first ship 
manager in Asia to start using this 

the contAiner ship MArket was given 
special focus during the year. Among other 
initiatives, we revised our complete rule 
set for this segment.
 It was therefore an important milestone 
when a German shipowner ordered ten 
new container ships – to be built in South 
Korea to DNV class. 
 Advisory services were a key element in 
achieving this big container ship contract.
 An even bigger contract – probably the 
world’s largest ever shipbuilding contract 
– was signed in August. Twelve very large 
ore carriers, each of 400,000 dwt, are  
to be built to DNV Class for the world’s 

DNV has a continuous focus  
on safety at sea. Between focus 
on technical navigation on the  
one hand, and the organisation, 
behaviour and management  
focus on the other, we presented  
a wide range of new services  
and tools throughout 2008.

focus oN ship clAssificAtion

The frequency of accidents has increased over the past few years.  
A ship is twice as likely to be involved in a serious collision today 
compared with five years ago. In 2008, we were the first class society  
to offer tailored management tools to halt this negative trend.

Following DNV research and recommendations, ships above a certain 
size will start to use electronic charts in future. Although this will  
take years to fully implement, important decisions to achieve this  
were made by the International Maritime Organization in 2008. 

incidents
less

safety
more
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When the roadmap was introduced, other 
major stakeholders were invited to take 
part in its development. The International 
Maritime Organization, alongside other 
class societies, shipowners and yards  
have been positive to the initiative.
 Shipping is, however, already the most 
energy efficient means of transportation 
and moving more cargo to ships can con-
tribute to reduced global CO2 emissions.

in June 2008, we completed our chair-
manship of the International Association 
of Classification Societies (IACS). DNV’s 
Tor Svensen used the 12 months at the 
helm to define the role of class on the 
new environmental agenda and to con-
tinuously focus on safety at sea. 
 Although our main focus is on im-
provements for customers, shipyards,  
shipowners and society at large, internal 
focus on better safety and fewer acci-
dents is mandatory. There have been  
too many accidents when working at 
heights. A new systematic approach to 
the problem and a new training module 
have therefore been put into force in 
2008 to make surveyors’ work safer  
and decrease the number of accidents.
 The objective is to manage risk by avoid-
ing personal accidents and incidents. 

bAckground

 MISC Berhad (MISC – Malaysia 
International Shipping Corp) is one 
of the top ten shipping companies 
in the world by market capitalisation. 
Headquarters in Kuala Lumpur.

 MISC’s business involves the 
owning and operating of ships and 
offshore floating facilities as well  
as marine repair, marine conversion 
and engineering.

 MICS operates a modern fleet  
of more than 100 vessels and is the 
largest single owner and operator 
of LNG (Liquefied Natural Gas) 
tankers in the world.

focus oN ship clAssificAtion

And fuel consumption – both the type 
and amount of fuel – is a focus area in  
the years to come. The shipping industry, 
like the onshore and transportation 
industries, has to set targets for its 
emissions – particularly for CO2. 

In 2008, we introduced a roadmap for reduc-
ing CO2 emissions, which can be reduced by  
as much as 20-50% per ship by action taken 
on existing vessels and for newbuildings  
prior to 2030. Emissions can be reduced by as 
much as 50-70% per ship by the year 2050.

 eMergency response. For assistance 
on stability and residual strength of vessels 
in emergencies, DNV offers a 24/7 emer-
gency response service. In 2008, 12 vessels 
were assisted. Examples were grounding, 
water ingress, loss of stability and fire.

 bAllAst wAter treAtMent. A new 
IMO convention on ballast water will enter 
into force addressing problems experienced 
with harmful aquatic organisms spreading 
from one area to another through a ships 
ballast water system. The first ballast 
water treatment systems have already 
been approved in accordance with this 
standard – one of them by DNV. Approval 
of two more systems by DNV is ongoing.

 use of cleAner fuel. Use of LNG 
instead of heavy fuel oil for main pro- 
pulsion will reduce the emission to air. 

Emission of CO2 can be reduced by 20-24%, 
SOx and particul matter (PM) by 100% and 
NOx by 90%. At year end 2008, 37 vessels 
classed by DNV was fueled by LNG. 

 reduction of volAtile orgAnic 
coMpound. DNV has also introduced 
class notations to reduce emission of  
VOC (Volatile Organic Compound).  
This is a notation that has “taken off”  
over the past year. By the end 2008,  
661 vessels had this notation. 366  
more vessels (in our order-book)  
will be delivered with this notation.

eNViroNmeNtal impact  
of our serVices

figure 4  total DNV orDerBook 
accumulated - developed
number of vessels and gross tonnes as of 01.01.2009

MILL GT NO. OF VESSELS
NO. OF VESSELSMILL

figure 5  DNV fleet DeVelopmeNt
number of vessels and gross tonnes as of 01.01.2009
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case stuDy: Misc berhAd

To do so, there was a need to improve the 
operation and capabilities of the business. 
MISC partnered with DNV and embarked 
on a strong capability building drive for 
its fleet management operations.
 MISC’s vision is to become the preferred 
provider of world-class maritime transpor-
tation and logistics services. Since 2005, 
DNV has partnered with MISC to improve 
capabilities in maintenance, crewing, 
procurement and fuel management. 
 
DNV assisted with a review of existing 
fleet management operations and capa-
bilities, setting performance benchmarks 
and identifying gaps and opportunities. 
New practices were developed and trialled 
before implementing the solutions with 
monitoring of benefit achievements.

Operational efficiency and capabilities 
have been improved through imple-
menting a new operational fleet team 
structure supported by new crewing 
system and various procurement initia-
tives. A risk-centred programme for  
vessel maintenance has also been imple-
mented. The fuel efficiency programme  
has resulted in substantial documented 
reductions in fuel consumption.

MISC has also defined, together with  
DNV SeaSkill™, the company’s com-
petence management standards for 
seagoing personnel. This has laid the 
foundation for improved seafarer 
training – developing seafarers with 
improved competence levels and  
operational readiness.

competeNce BuilDiNg achieVes BusiNess results 

MISC Berhad, the leading international shipping line company  
of Malaysia, wanted to move the company to an even higher level  
and achieve tangible improvements in their business competitiveness  
and environmental performance. 

391 new vessels, corresponding  
to 18.1 mill gross tonnes, were 
contracted to DNV class in 2008.18.110 67of all newbuild-

ings in 2008 were  
to DNV class.22% % frequency of serious navigational 

accidents for commercial ships 
decreased by 10% last year.

shipping heading for overcapacity?  
for every 100 bulk carriers in operation, 
67 bulk carriers are under construction 
or in the orderbook.
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meet saripaka srikanth 
Job title: surveyor
Workplace: mumbai, india
We do project: low emission car

 in india, more and
 more cars run on  
liquified petroleum gas  
(lpg). i save 20 rupee per  
litre compared to petrol  
and i am polluting far  
less this way. i simply  
had a second fuel tank  
installed on the car.

 my job as a  
 surveyor at Bharati 
shipyard in mumbai is  
to make sure that vessels 
constructed here are safe  
and comply with DNV  
class rules.

saripaka’s We Do proJect at Work With saripaka

liquified petroleum gas (lpg) is  
a natural hydrocarbon fuel made  
up of propane and butane. lpg 
produces far less carbon dioxide 
than petrol and fewer particulates 
and nitrogen oxides than diesel.

indian yards placed over 100  
new building orders for ships  
to DNV class in 2008, and DNV  
has a market share of 48% at  
new-building yards in india.

about 60% of the world supply  
of lpg comes from the separation  
of natural gas products, and 40%  
is a by-product from the refining  
of crude oil. in the past, lpg has 
been considered as waste and  
flared off; now it is recognised  
as a major energy source.

approximately 30% of the 
indian-owned fleet of ships in 
operation are classed by DNV. 
With 75 maritime staff, DNV is  
the largest class society in india.

60% 30%LPG 100
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We aim to provide state-of-the-art 
knowledge through a very broad range  
of services covering the entire value chain 
from source to market. Our services 
support both oil and gas operations  
as well as cleaner energy solutions.  
Our clean energy organisation grew  
to 200 people in 2008. This includes  
the acquisition of the wind consultancy 
company GEC in Seattle, which comple-
mented our existing wind expertise and 
service-lines. DNV is now the second 
biggest wind consultancy in the world 
and the largest independent certifier  
of wind projects. 

of the pressing challenges now facing us. 
Behind every threat and danger, there  
are opportunities for rewards.

dnv hAs done pioneering work to 
solve some of the most difficult tasks the 
energy industry is facing. We help customers 
define and address their challenges and 
recognise their opportunities, by combining 
risk, technology and mangement expertise.
 Norway is still our single biggest opera-
tions location, but countries like Brazil, 
China, India and the USA are playing  
an increasingly important role in our 
portfolio of energy projects.

number of joint industry projects to 
ensure new standards and innovations  
are developed for the good of all stake-
holders. 

trust wAs Also the basis for one of 
our greatest achievements in 2008, when 
Petrobras of Brazil awarded us the classi-
fication contract for the first Floating 
Production, Storage and Offloading vessel 
(FPSO) ever in the US Gulf of Mexico. 
 Worldwide, DNV is running 80 offshore 
newbuild or conversion projects, and  
200 Mobile Offshore Units (MOUs) are  
in operation to DNV Class.

An unstAble financial situation, highly 
volatile energy prices and climate change 
issues have made the future more uncertain. 
However, we believe that with every uncer-
tainty there is at least one opportunity.
 The world has probably never experi-
enced such an extreme economic turmoil 
as in 2008. From a situation with record 
high investments and all-time-high energy 
consumption and oil price, the year ended 
with a total about-turn. The word “crisis” 
has never been used so much as in 2008. 
The Chinese word for crisis is made up of 
two words, Wei (danger) and Ji (oppor-
tunity). And that is exactly our view  

cArbon cApture and Storage is  
a significant activity in our operations,  
and we are currently working for the 
European Union and a number of other 
governments and companies. In addition, 
We are taking the lead in joint industry 
projects, aiming to create standards  
for the capture, transportation and 
storage of CO2. This is supported by  
all the major players and key interna- 
tional authorities. 
 Due to our technology expertise, 
knowledge-sharing philosophy and the 
trust we enjoy from both the industry  
and authorities, we are managing a 

Renewables’ share of the total energy mix must be increased.  
Wind energy is the most mature and fastest growing renew-
able energy source. At the same time we must extract and  
consume fossil fuel in a more efficient way and develop  
new solutions to capture, transport and store CO2 – safely.

A long-term energy demand growth is expected. There is an 
abundance of energy resources, but environmental, economic 
and resource access constraints will curb energy demand growth. 
The world must develop, produce and consume energy  
in a more efficient way to ensure sustainable growth.

carbon
less

energy
more

oil and gas are finite resources. 
however, renewable energy  
is not going to replace fossil  
fuels anytime soon. But it will 
make up a growing part of the 
world’s energy supply and will  
be critical in efforts to reduce  
carbon emissions. 

focus oN energy
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in chinA, one of the world’s largest 
energy companies, China National 
Petroleum Corporation (CNPC), is grow-
ing fast and we are helping in its progres- 
sion towards world-class operations;  
for example by providing risk and 
integrity management consulting to  
its pipeline division. In the downstream 
sector, We are helping in safeguarding  
the operations of China’s largest refinery, 
Dalian Refinery, and the leading West 
Pacific Refinery. Both use DNV’s ISRS7 
PSM process safety management 
approach.

brAzil plans to quadruple the natural 
gas in its energy matrix to 12% by 2012. 
Petrobras is building the first two re- 
gasification terminals in the country, and 
we are providing risk consulting services  
to address safety and business critical 
issues in addition to performing basic 
design and construction verification. 
Brazil needs an extensive, complex 
pipeline network connecting all its 
production and consumption regions. 
Operational reliability is a major issue, 
and we are supporting with our asset 
integrity and performance forecasting 
knowledge in integrating all the net-
works into a single national network. 

focus oN energy

in the uk, asset integrity performance  
is a major focus area. We have worked 
closely with the BG Group to develop an 
innovative educational tool that improves 
the understanding of major incident 
hazards and risk management. The jointly 
developed Asset Integrity training and 
awareness programme has been rolled 
out across its international asset port-
folio during 2008.
 LNG use is developing rapidly, and  
we are involved in more than 30% of  
the global projects. Many of these are 
strategically important to the nations 
concerned. One such project is South 
Hook, a receiving terminal at Milford 
Haven in Wales. The first gas delivery is 
planned for early 2009, and the terminal 
aims to supply a significant proportion  
of the UK’s future gas needs.

in the us, biofuel is considered an impor-
tant energy source, especially for the  
automotive industry. However, there are  
a number of challenges involved in trans-
porting this liquid through existing pipe- 
lines, especially related to stress corrosion  
cracking. To solve this, our corrosion and  
material experts are assisting customers 
and conducting research programs, e.g for 
the Pipeline Research Council International.

in AlgeriA, we helped national oil 
company Sonatrach with a comprehensive 
analysis of the operational management 
systems of its downstream activities related 
to Liquified Natural Gas (LNG) and Liquified 
Petroleum Gas (LPG) plants. Sonatrach 
employs 120,000 people and is the world’s 
second-largest LNG and LPG exporter.

case stuDy: nord streAM
bAckground

 Pipeline systems represent 
significant financial investment and 
constitute a key element of the 
industrial and public value chain. 

 Ensuring that each pipeline is 
designed, fabricated and operated 
in a safe, reliable and cost-effective 
manner involves a multitude of 
professional disciplines.

 This is why our pipeline standard 
is being adopted as the most rec-
ognised standard, giving support  
to 70% of all offshore pipelines.  
The reason for its success is the  
accumulated knowledge from DNV  
in combination with the developing 
needs of the industry players.

 DNV has released the world’s first stand-
ard for qualification of carbon capture  
technology.

 We are running two global joint industry 
projects, which will conclude standards of  
how to and where to transport and store CO2.

 DNV has carried out 42 renewable  
certification and qualification projects  
for customers.

DNV has a strong focus on helping the indus-
try manage safety issues. Analyses that we  
have performed show that the hydrocarbon 
processing industry has not yet managed  
to reduce the occurrence of major accidents. 
Solving this critical issue will require a clearer 
understanding of the potential root causes 
related to people, plant and process. DNV has 
tracked and recorded accidents and incidents 
reported in the process industry since 2005.

 We carried out 16 carbon capture  
and storage project evaluations  
during the year. 

 In 2008, we presented more than  
10 papers related to renewable energy 
at major conferences world-wide.  
We participated in more than 14 con-
ferences related to renewable energy.

eNViroNmeNtal impact of our serVices safety first

This natural gas highway will be 1,220 
kilometres long. It will be routed from 
Vyborg, northwest of St. Petersburg  
in Russia, under the Baltic Sea, with  
a maximum water depth of 211 meters, 
terminating in Lubmin near Greifswald, 
Germany. It will consist of two parallel 
lines, with a total annual capacity of 
approximately 55 billion cubic metres. 
They will be ready for transporting  
gas in 2011 and 2012 respectively.

Nord Stream directly connects Russia’s 
large gas reserves with the growing 
European energy consumer markets.  
The new pipeline will supply Europe  
with a significant share of its addi-
tional future energy needs, and is an 
important factor of energy security.

The pipeline is being built to DNV’s 
recognised offshore pipeline standard. 
Nord Stream has also hired DNV as an 
independent third party to confirm that 
the pipeline complies with the standard.

Once the pipeline is ready for opera- 
tion, a certificate of compliance with  
the standard will be issued. This assures 
stakeholders such as finance institutions, 
insurers, authorities, shareholders  
and the public at large that Nord  
Stream is a safe pipeline.

DNV has been involved in many  
of the world’s most complex subsea 
pipeline projects. Read more:
   dnv.com / offshorepipelines

applyiNg staNDarDs for NeW eNergy supply 

Crossing the waters of five Baltic Sea countries, Nord Stream  
will be an important gas pipeline to carry natural gas to Europe.  
It is built to DNV’s recognised pipeline standard and will transport 
enough gas to supply 25 million European households.

of the world lNg 
terminal projects are 
supported by DNV.30 75% of the world’s 

fpsos are built 
to DNV class.40%% of the global offshore  

wind projects are certified 
and verified by DNV. 31 oil & gas and energy-

related Joint industry 
projects were managed 
by DNV in 2008. 

figure 6  receNt fatality statistics  
for eNergy iNDustries

figure 7  receNt eNergy 
iNDustry iNJury statistics
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meet tara podnar 
Job title: project engineer
Workplace: columbus, ohio, usa
We do project: on-demand water heater

tara’s We Do proJect at Work With tara

 With the funding
 provided by DNV,  
i installed an on-demand 
water heater. this has not  
only kick-started an effort  
to make our home more 
energy efficient, but also 
impressed our friends  
and family. 

 i work with pipeline
 operators to ensure 
the integrity and safe oper-
ation of their systems. here  
at the columbus office we 
have expertise in managing 
corrosion, materials and 
structural integrity risks  
for the pipeline industry.

the on-demand water heater saves 
up to 40% of the energy used by 
conventional water heaters. tara 
has experienced only few adverse 
effects. there is a bit of a delay  
in receiving hot water at tap loca-
tions furthest from the system,  
but it provides endless hot water.

in 2008, 21.4% of the 103 incidents 
involving hazardous gas lines were 
caused by corrosion, according  
to the office of pipeline safety.

Buildings account for more than 2/3 
of energy used in most countries. 
the potential for energy savings is 
great and compelling, and can often 
be achieved at low or no costs.

60-70% of the world’s offshore 
pipelines are designed and in-
stalled to DNV’s pipeline standard.  
DNV has issued its fourth revision  
of its recognised standard.

2 3 65%40% 103
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and integrated way. This to ensure con-
sistency, synergy and effectiveness in the 
management system. This one-stop-shop 
approach also includes integration of 
company specific needs beyond manage-
ment system certification . 
 Focus on the product’s environmental 
footprint is growing. Awareness on the 
part of society and consumers increases 
focus on environmental management  
and the product footprint throughout  
its life-cycle. Production continues to take 
place in fewer places with the world as 
the market place. However, each country 
needs to ensure that products introduced 

services. Corporate responsibility and 
supply chain management has been placed 
on the corporate agenda by media and 
stakeholders. The certification process  
is increasingly becoming a powerful 
means for companies to get on top  
of and manage complex supply chains. 
Fragmented supply chains, as well as 
ethical and environmental demands, 
forces companies to gain control, and 
manage their supply chain in a proactive, 
responsible and sustainable manner. 
 There is a trend that companies see the 
benefit of having one certification body 
that can handle their needs in a holistic 

fuels the need for a holistic risk-based 
assessment services. These are assessments 
that provide clear insight into management 
performance and best practice, and facil-
itate benchmarking within and outside  
the organization. We are responding  
to this need by continuous development  
of new services in close collaboration  
with customers and other stakeholders. 

the food And beverAge industry 
continues to be an industry with global 
focus. Food safety is the primary issue in 
this industry with an increased focus on 
supply chain management. In 2008, the 

certificAtion continues to be a core 
business for DNV with the largest service 
being management system certification.  
The financial crisis did not have a great 
negative effect on the certification 
business in 2008. Companies typically 
tend to need more trust and confidence  
in such situations. Thus we saw a growth 
both in certification to the ISO 9001 
quality standard and the environmental 
standard ISO 14001. 
 Emerging markets such as China, India, 
Eastern Europe and South America, where 
certification is the ticket-to-trade, continues 
to contribute to growth in certification 

to citizens  are safe and environmentally 
sustainable, which creates a need for 
conformity assessment and certifications 
of products.

new stAkeholder requirements related 
to environmental and social concerns are 
emerging alongside a rapidly growing 
focus to ensure sustainable business per-
formance. We continue to deliver veri-
fication and rating services, in particular 
related to health, safety and security. 
Globalisation, complexity of product/
service realisation processes, linked to out-
sourcing of activities along the value chain, 

globalisation, consolidations, 
complex value chains and demands 
for sustainability has strength-
ened the need for independent 
and third party certification 
services. the financial crisis  
has only increased the need  
for trust and confidence. 

focus oN certificAtion

In times with increased uncertainty, markets, consumers and 
other stakeholders are looking for firm assurance that they 
can trust and have confidence in the companies with whom 
they do business or the products and services they buy. 

uncer-
tainty
less

trust
more

The globalised world poses complex challenges for 
companies everywhere. To ensure sustainable operations, 
they must minimise uncertainties in a continual and 
systematic way to stay sharp, robust and competitive.
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perspective became truly global when major 
players in the US implemented food safety 
requirements on suppliers. The US Food and 
Drug Administration (FDA) started consid-
ering food safety certification as a tool to 
increase food market governance’s effec-
tiveness and efficiency, and guarantee food 
safety in every step of the value chain. 
 There is also a continued focus on environ-
mental aspects, and the need for services 
like carbon footprint is increasing. Companies 
are increasingly being held responsible for 
their entire value chain, and we have been 
more involved in managing their total risk 
picture. For example through auditing and 
certification of suppliers. 
  The need for trust and confidence in this 
industry sector was underscored in 2008 by 
international food related incidents, such 
as the melamine affair in China (affecting 
milk and confectionary). Consumers’ and 
other stakeholders’ expectations impose 
effectiveness, transparency and sustain-
ability through the entire supply chain.  
We see that building and maintaining effi-
cient and sustainable supply chains is a source 
of competitive advantage in the market  
and a necessary condition to ensure the  
survival of food and beverage companies.  
DNV continued to grow quickly within food  
and beverage industry through 2008. 

Take actions to  
continually improve 
performance of  
the management 
system.

Establish the objec-
tives and processes

necessary to deliver 
results in accordance

with the organisa-
tion’s policy.

Monitor and measure processes 
against policy, objectives, 
targets, legal and other require-
ments, and report the results.

Implement  
the processes

focus oN certificAtion

As the first company in 40 years, DNV  
was approved by the US government’s 
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid  
(CMS) to accredit hospitals. Working to 
have an impact on quality and patient 
safety improvements, DNV developed  
the NIAHOSM standard against which 
hospitals are audited and accredited.  
The standard was launched in the US,  

but it is also branched out in countries 
where healthcare tourism is promoted 
such as in Brazil.

Also, DNV continues to serve the UK 
government’s NHSLA in maintaining 
standards and evaluating and rating over 
600 hospitals and clinics in England that 
are directly controlled by that agency.  
We have also certified the quality man-
agement system of over 1,200 healthcare 
related organisations (hospitals, clinics, 
long-term care, diagnostic centres, 
pharmacies and other suppliers). 

moViNg iNto healthcare

DNV’s Risk-Based Certification method-
ology provides companies with more 
value from the management system 
certification. The DNV auditor will ask  
the company what their most significant 
business risks are, and based on that  
tailor the audit to address the identified 
key processes. 

This helps identify key areas for
improvement and provides structured 
information to top management on  
the organisation’s ability to meet their 
business goals and objectives.

risk-BaseD certificatioN™

 Management System Certification  
(ISO 9001, ISO 27000, ISO 14001,  
OHSAS 18001 and industry specific  
standards)

 Product certification
 Food safety schemes
 Healthcare schemes
 EU ETS (European trading  
scheme for green house gases) 

certificatioN serVices

case stuDy: kAtokichi

The company recognised an immediate 
need to improve its food safety manage-
ment system at manufacturing factories 
and among suppliers to reduce food 
safety risks, preventing similar future 
incidents and communicate trust to  
the market. 

Partnering with DNV, Katokichi went  
to work to strengthen their food safety 
management throughout their value 
chain. A plan was created for increased 
monitoring and audits of manufacturing 
factories and suppliers. Starting in 2008, 
the plan includes second party audits on 
more then 120 suppliers in Asia and Europe. 
DNV will also certify 30 Katokichi plants 
in Japan to the food safety management 
system standard ISO 22000. 

After taking control back, Katokichi has 
already minimised their risk of another 
recall and communicated trust. Rein-
forcement of the quality management 
system framework enabled Katokichi to 
take better control of their food safety 
processes and the supply chain. The use  
of a third party organisation has helped 
Katokichi communicate trust and confi-
dence to customers.

NatioNWiDe frozeN fooD recall

Katokichi, one of the leading frozen food companies in Japan, 
experienced in 2008 a nationwide recall on a portion of its frozen 
products. The culprit was revealed to be a pesticide contamination;  
the source remained unknown. 

bAckground

 Consumers demand that what 
they put on their table is safe  
and traceable to its origin.

 The food and beverage industry 
has become global, creating more 
complex supply chains, affecting  
the way global food players operate.

 Certification to recognised 
national or international standards 
is an important means to facilitate  
global trade. Specific food safety 
standards ensures implementation 
of best practices and communicates 
this to the business and consumer 
segment.

 DNV offers a wide range  
of certification and assessment 
services aimed to create trust  
and confidence in the food and 
beverage industry.

 Read more about our services to 
this industry on    food.dnv.com

healthcare related  
organisations have  
had their quality  
management system  
certified by DNV.

in 2008, we were reaccredited for all  
our 82 accreditations worldwide to  
ensure compliance with the new iso  
17021 standard for accreditation bodies. 2,20082 AccreditAtions 

worldwide
hAve been re-
Accredited

figure 8  coNtiNual improVemeNt of the maNagemeNt system

coNtiNual 
improVemeNt 

act

check

plan

do

 there is a trend  
 that companies  
see the benefit of having  
one certification body  
that can handle their  
needs in a holistic and 
integrated way.
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meet Davide Busani 
Job title: food sector manager
Workplace: milan, italy
We do project: Bicycle

 i used the environ-
 mental fund We do  
to buy a bicycle. i realised  
that i could use a bike  
instead of a car for many  
small errands, like buying 
bread on saturday morning  
or visiting friends at the  
other end of the village.

 my team helps
 companies in the  
food and beverage sector 
improve the quality,  
safety and sustainability  
of their products.

DaViDe’s We Do proJect at Work With DaViDe

in europe, nearly 50% of all  
trips by car are shorter than  
5 km, and almost 30% of  
these are shorter than 1 km.

food safety is the number 2  
concern for decision-makers, who 
are heading retail and consumer  
goods companies in 54 countries 
according to the 2009 top of  
mind cies survey (the first  
one being “the economy  
and consumer Demand”.

more than 4,000 employees, 
equalling nearly 50% of the 
workforce, applied for We do 
funding in 2008. the environ-
mental impact is estimated  
to an annual reduction of  
1,500 tonnes co2.

a recent survey conducted  
by infratest on behalf of DNV 
revealed that 92% of italian 
consumers would not buy a  
product from a company whose 
activities have a negative impact  
on the environment or do not 
respect employees’ rights.

4,000 92%50% no.2
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2008 also saw DNV launching the Climate 
Change Academy and Network. This will 
build and share competence within the 
carbon market as access to competent 
people has proven a bottleneck for  
many companies in the business.

switching to renewAble energy sourc-
es is another significant way to address 
climate change. We are active on several 
fronts, but have held a particularly crucial 
role in the wind energy industry almost since 
its infancy. In addition to being the world’s 
largest independent certifier of wind farm 
projects, we became the second largest 

this developed into a USD125 billion 
global carbon market. It includes man-
datory and voluntary emission trading 
schemes as well as the so-called flexible 
mechanisms under the Kyoto protocol.
 One such scheme is the Clean Develop-
ment Mechanism (CDM), administered  
by the UN. DNV was one of the first two  
organisations to be accredited to perform 
third party validation and verification of 
CDM projects and has been involved in 
almost the half of all projects1. In addition, 
We are involved in forming new standards 
and ensuring integrity of the rapidly grow-
ing voluntary carbon trading schemes. 

contributors to solving the future’s global 
climate challenges. We are facilitating,  
on behalf of the different industries and 
authorities, the development of recom-
mended practices for capturing, trans-
porting and storing CO2. This work will  
be finalised in 2010, but the first recom-
mended practice was finalised in 2008.

fuel sAvings of up to of 5-15% are 
realistic to achieve for shipping companies 
today, according to our research. Since the 
fuel bill can account for as much as 50-70%  
of the total voyage cost, savings could have 
big financial impact. We offer energy 

dnv plAys A cruciAl role in the carbon 
market by validating greenhouse gas emis-
sion reduction projects and verifying that 
emission reductions actually take place, 
using our independent status, technology 
expertise and experience within among 
others the energy sector.
 The “carbon market” is a financial mech-
anism that allows emitters (companies, 
countries or individuals) to meet manda-
tory or voluntary emissions commitments. 
This is done by buying credits from offset 
projects which reduce emissions or by buy-
ing emission allowances from someone who 
has not used their allowances. In 2008, 

wind consultant in 2008, by acquiring the 
US based company GEC. DNV addresses 
technical, environmental, and financial 
challenges that investors and developers 
are likely to meet in wind energy projects, 
which now also includes a new capability 
of measuring and verifying wind resources.  

cApturing, trAnsporting and stor-
ing CO2 is another area where we take 
a lead. Large-scale carbon capture and 
storage (CCS) is still at an immature  
stage for both coal and gas power plants. 
However, the technology has the poten-
tial to be one of the most significant 

in 2008, we intensified our focus 
on offerings related to climate 
change and corporate respon- 
sibility. We believe demand for 
sustainability-related services  
will only increase in the future.

focus oN sustAinAbility

In 2008, we initiated three joint industry activities to take the 
groundbreaking work within the capture, transportation and storage 
of CO2 to a new level. Also, we became the first to verify that new 
hydropower projects are fulfilling a new sustainability protocol.  

DNV has stated an ambition to contribute to a more 
sustainable development, mainly through the services 
and standards we provide. Responding to this  
challenge requires efforts on many fronts.

talk
less

action
more
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management services that focus on 
process improvements, and take a holistic 
approach by addressing organisational 
and technical issues. A project with an 
Asian container company resulted in  
fuel savings of USD50m and a reduction 
of 290,000 ton CO2 emissions annually.
 DNV’s corporate responsibility (CR) serv-
ices have seen steady growth the past year. 

These services cover a wide range of risks 
and opportunities arising from organisa-
tions’ environmental and labour practices, 
human rights, business ethics, corporate 
governance, fraud resistance, community 
and marketplace activities. Our portfolio 
of CR services includes assessment of 
current practices, verification of report-
ing as well as training courses. 

our report verificAtion service is 
most in demand, and we can verify against 
our proprietary protocol for verification, 
VeriSustain (launched in 2004), but also 
other standard criteria. Continued  
growth is anticipated in our CR services. 
External assurance in CR areas is increas-
ingly recognised as important to driving 
performance improvements and ensuring 
credible communication with stakeholders, 
including investors. We are already seeing 
how the economic downturn is focusing 
organisations’ attention on managing 
new areas addressed in our CR services, 
such as risks to reputation and human 
capital.

sustAinAbility considerAtions in 
the supply chain are opening new doors 
to strategic collaboration and integration 
between buyers and suppliers. Emerging 
issues that go beyond price and delivery, 
such as energy efficiency, workplace 
considerations and carbon footprinting, 
are also raising considerable challenges  
to both established and new relation-
ships with suppliers. A robust yet wider 
consideration of risk management is 
required to seize these potential oppor-
tunities and maximise both stakeholder 
and shareholder value. 

In November 2008, DNV’s accreditation was temporarily  
suspended after a spot check audit. The non-conformities  
related to practices for internal audits, and how DNV docu-
ments the allocation of specific competencies to the projects  
and refer to emerging requirements for allocating competencies.  
DNV quickly addressed the issues and regained accreditation  
in February 2009. Ongoing customer dialogue revealed that  
the suspension had limited impact on customer projects.

2008 Report to the Nation on Occupational Fraud  
& Abuse, Association of Certified Fraud Examiners,  
 www.acfe.com / documents / 2008-rttn.pdf, page 4 

1

*

focus oN sustAinAbility

The EGMS is continuously assessed and 
certified by DNV. The annual assessments 
include CR report verification, assessing 
elements of the Code of Conduct Policy, 
and testing of the company’s process for 
the management of its Supplier Code of 
Conduct. In addition to providing a global 
view of compliance to its requirements 
through a management report, coverage 
of these perspectives are reflected in  
the Assurance Statement. 
 
The value of the EGMS and DNV’s approach 
to assessing it were well tested when a 
Danish documentary broadcast in 2008 
associated Ericsson with suppliers in 
Bangladesh where workplace conditions 
were found to be in violation of interna-

tional conventions and the corporate 
code of conduct. Ericsson was able to 
demonstrate the systems and controls 
already applied to its suppliers globally 
and the actions proactively implemented 
to enhance the effectiveness of these 
through the external verification by DNV.
 
While the Assurance Statement provides  
a valuable tool for external stake-
holders, the management report iden-
tifies opportunities for improvement.  
This allows Ericsson to drive internal 
efficiency. The site visits carried out  
at Ericsson Market Units are perceived  
as an effective communication and 
engage-ment mechanisms to motivate 
buy-in for the internal stakeholders.

assessiNg corporate respoNsiBility (cr)

Customers of Ericsson require external and independent assessment of 
Ericsson’s management system. Facing increasing calls for further assurance 
from stakeholders, Ericsson has incorporated Corporate Responsibility  
(CR) in their management system – the Ericsson Group Management 
System (EGMS). CR has become an integral part of Ericsson’s culture. 

case stuDy: the ericsson group
bAckground

 DNV´s assessments identify not 
only possible non-compliance in the 
parts of the management system.

 It also provides opportunities for 
improvement as well as acknowledge-
ment of efforts that can help to drive 
internal change for improvement. 

 DNV is able to track progress  
and maturity of the management  
of emerging requirements, partic-
ularly within CR dimensions. 

 While DNV has only entered  
its second year of CR assessment 
delivery, it is already reporting 
considerable improvements across 
the Ericsson Group.

24087%
the cDm provides offsets that are 
generated from primarily private 
investments in clean energy tech-
nologies. cDm accounts for 87%  
of the project-based carbon market.

240 million certified emission reductions 
(cer, 1 cer is equal to one tonne of co2 
equivalent) were generated from cDm 
projects by year end. 130 million (54%) 
came from projects validated by DNV and 
DNV has verified 67 million cers (28%).Million

As a renewable energy source, hydro-
power is seen as an attractive way to  
help countries meet their energy needs. 
Much of the unleashed hydropower 
potential is in developing nations, but 
several projects have created severe  
social and environmental problems.

In response to this, DNV launched a  
new verification service that assesses  
the social, economic and environmen-
tal performance of new hydropower 
projects. 

With this, companies demonstrate  
their commitment to the International 
Hydropower Association’s Sustainability 
Assessment Protocol. 

DNV is now the only company in the 
world to provide third party assess-
ments according to the protocol.

sustaiNaBle hyDropoWer 
VerificatioN to iNcrease 
traNspareNcy

Within the area of climate change,  
DNV has carried out research in 2008 
addressing the following areas:

 How can emissions be reduced in  
a cost-effective way from shipping?  
New ship design, use of fuel cells on-
board ships and implementation of oper-
ational measures were aspects covered.

 How can hydrogen be used safely as an 
energy carrier in land-based transportation 
systems? Several years of research in this area 
has resulted in tools and methods that are 
now ready for industrial application.

 How can existing infrastructure be used 
for transporting biofuels? The behaviour 
of equipment designed for transportation 
of petroleum products when exposed to 
various biofuels has been investigated.

 Can CO2 be stored safely in under-
ground reservoirs for 1,000 years?  
How can this be verified?

our research oN 
climate chaNge International surveys estimate corporate 

fraud and corruption to 7% of the revenue1. 
Several large cases of corporate fraud have 
recently figured in media and brought more 
focus from corporations as well as govern-
mental bodies on these sensitive topics.  
DNV offers a valuable tool for assessing how 
resistant organisations are to fraud and cor-
ruption. Through assessment, opportunities 
for improvement can be located which can 
help organisations turn them into strategic, 
organisational and operational advantages. 

frauD aND corruptioN resistaNce

Our ambition is have global impact for  
a safe a sustainable future. This cannot  
be done without China being part of  
the solution. DNV has established a 
Sustainability Centre in Beijing to be  
part of that solution. From here, we  
will develop new services and a global 
competence centre on sustainability.

sustaiNaBility ceNtre iN chiNa
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kaNg’s We Do proJect at Work With kaNg

meet guo kang 
Job title: technical manager, 
climate change services
Workplace: Beijing, china
We do project: solar water heater

 i make sure that 
 DNV’s validation  
and verification of emission 
reducing projects under  
the clean Development 
mechanism in china are in  
line with the requirements 
from the united Nations and 
our own internal standards.

48% of all clean Development 
mechanism (cDm) projects  
under the kyoto protocol  
are validated by DNV.

china is the country which has 
registered most cDm projects. 
credits generated from these 
projects (certified emission 
reductions) are sold to buyers  
in developed countries.

CDM48%
 in china, we have a
 saying that ‘children  
are our future’, so i used  
the We do funding to install  
a solar water heater in my 
daughter’s school. it benefits 
almost 1,000 school children, 
who also get increased 
environmental awareness.

the solar water heater on the roof  
of the school in guo kang’s local 
community in Beijing generates  
enough hot water for the needs of  
the school kitchen. even with help from 
electricty, it can save 95% electricity  
compared to a standard electrical 
water heater in summer months.

the maximum amount of We do 
funds from DNV per employee  
per year is Nok 10,000 – regard-
less of country. 639 employees 
from china applied for We do 
funding in 2008. 

63995%
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(JIPs) for the oil, gas and energy sector 
and 35 JIPs for the maritime sector. 
These are projects where we join  
forces with leading companies, research 
institutes and authorities to develop 
new competences and innovations. 
Many of these projects will result in  
new standards and recommended 
practices in the years to come.

softwAre is Also An important 
knowledge tool. The use of our Sesam, 
Nauticus and Safeti software represents  
a vital part of our delivery to customers  
in the maritime and energy industries. 

As a ship classification company we are 
uniquely positioned to gain experience 
during the entire life-cycle of a vessel  
– from conception to recycling. This 
constant flow of knowledge is continu-
ously being built into the DNV Class  
Rules, so also in 2008.
 
explorAtion of oil and gas in deeper, 
harsher and more remote waters coupled 
with increasing environmental challenges 
imply a constant need for innovation. 
New standards are crucial to address  
just that. DNV is currently involved in  
37 joint industry development projects 

knowledge and competence; from 
traditional training in basic skills and 
technical knowledge via open courses 
and seminars, to network-based com-
petence building and customised 
programmes. 
 Efforts continued in 2008 to create  
a common, high-quality learning expe-
rience for our customers. The basic idea  
is to provide the knowledge, the insights 
and the expertise we derive from our 
daily practice in the form of effective, 
interactive training that helps partici-
pants apply new knowledge directly  
to their own working environment.

one of our core activities is to codify 
our accumulated knowledge and expe-
rience in the form of new standards and 
recommended practices, and provide 
both software tools and training for 
capturing and applying knowledge.
 We provide the maritime and energy 
industry with numerous publications 
covering Rules for Classification, 
Standards for Certification, Guidelines 
and Classification Notes and Offshore 
Standards. In 2008, this amounted to  
423 such publications. Our standards  
are continuously updated in close 
cooperation with the industry.

Software tools are needed to perform 
proper verification in DNV and for our 
customers. Software solutions are also 
required to store information and status 
regarding assets. Some tools are off the 
shelf software from commercial software 
companies, while other tools are developed 
and maintained by our internal software 
house in DNV. These tools have embedded 
DNV knowledge and best practices to 
gain productivity and get the work done. 

trAining And coMpetence building 
makes up an important part of our 
services and is another way of sharing 

sharing knowledge is a key  
driver of progress. making new 
methodologies and knowledge 
available to the industry is there-
fore an important part of DNV’s 
mission. so is our work with 
research and innovation to break 
new barriers and build knowledge 
and services for the future.

focus oN knowledge

know- 
ledge

Our independent nature, broad involvement with the industry,  
and our own leading research give us the opportunity to collect and  
build new knowledge and best practice from all angles of an industry.  
Then we can both share the knowledge and build competence.

short-
cuts

Why make the same mistake twice? Why go through painful trial  
and error to make progress? Building knowledge into standards  
and tools is the opposite of expensive guesswork. It’s about sharing 
accumulated knowledge and bringing everyone to a higher level.

lessmore
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knowledge And services for the 
future. An important vehicle for 
building new knowledge and continu-
ously developing our services is DNV’s 
research and innovation activities. 

These activities focus on two aspects: 
Strategic and long-term research and 
maintenance and development of  
services and tools within the different 
business units. 

In early 2008, the publication “Technology 
Outlook 2015” was launched, describing 
DNV’s assessment of development trends, 
both in our focus industries and on a macro 
level. During 2008, a wide range of research 
topics were identified that will address 
technology needs and solutions arising 
from these trends.

Research topics in 2008 included:
 The criticality and vulnerability  

of IT systems in oil and gas operations 
 Participation in projects focusing on 

methods for analysing security issues  
in general, aims at developing new 
approaches and knowledge within  
the field of security. 

 In the biorisk area (biosafety and bio-
security), tools and methods developed 
over the last years were successfully tested 
in the market, and are now offered as 
services in the market. 

 “Operational risk management for the 
21st century” is addressing an integrated 
approach to risk management, covering 
the physical aspects as well as the human 
behaviour and organisational issues.

 Sustainable shipping and oil and gas 
operations in the arctic are considered  
in a number of projects.

 Traceability in the food value chain.

focus oN knowledge

2,850 in Vietnam, state shipbuilder Vinashin  
and DNV entered a three year programme, 
where more than 1,200 people will be 
trained by DNV academy every year.

in china, 1,650 people from design institutes, 
shipyards, shipowners and manufacturers par-
ticipated in DNV’s training programmes in 2008, 
more than twice as many as the year before.

bAckground

 IT Global Services is a business 
area within DNV addressing IT  
risk management.

 One of our deliveries is to help 
build knowledge strategies for  
a wide range of companies.

 It includes planning and imple-
mentation of plans, processes and 
tools to safeguard and distribute 
your key knowledge assets, lessons 
learned and best practices and  
help turn knowledge into action.

 More on our IT related services: 
dnv.com / services / consulting / it

case stuDy: eurocontrol

people to be trAined yeArs

The goal is to create a flexible content 
management system, named SKYbrary,  
to organise the world’s aviation safety 
knowledge and make it universally acces-
sible and used by 2010. As well as using 
corporate-style ‘wikis’ to disseminate 
expert knowledge, the project is providing 
insight into the way that complex organi-
sations and their wider networks ascertain, 
model and manage their knowledge. 
 
EUROCONTROL is a pan-European organ-
isation which encompasses professions 
from air traffic controllers to government 
ministers. Aware that there was ultimately 
no single point of reference for safety 
knowledge, EUROCONTROL envisaged a 
mix of 21st century shared platforms such 
as Wikipedia with quality information. 

Such a strategy demanded information 
delivery within information-intensive 
networks, while balancing functionality 
of systems with processes and outputs.  
To meet these demanding requirements, 
EUROCONTROL selected DNV’s IT Global 
Services because of its risk-based philos-
ophy and effective knowledge manage-
ment expertise. 
 Although it’s a three-year project,  
the SKYbrary programme is meeting  
its early success measures, making good 
progress towards its original target  
of 1,000 safety-related articles. 
 The SKYBrary wiki demonstrates that 
knowledge management processes, and 
appropriate supporting systems can be 
captured and shared in fast changing and 
complex safety-critical environments.

a Wiki for the WorlD’s aViatioN safety kNoWleDge

The European aviation industry’s ‘umbrella’ safety organisation  
EUROCONTROL is helping to promote safety-critical processes and 
operational best practice using a knowledge management platform. 
This was developed in conjunction with DNV’s IT experts.

DNV is a provider of customised 
training and competence building 
within many different areas. 

For the maritime industry, we have a  
long tradition for competence building 
through training. 2008 saw the signing  
of a memorandum of understanding with 
India’s national maritime university, AMET, 
to establish a shipbuilding academy. 

DNV has had similar set-ups for a long time 
in other countries such as Korea, China, 
and Vietnam. In Korea alone, more than 
9,500 people have been trained by DNV.

One of the new offerings introduced in 
2008 was the Climate Change Academy 
and Network, aiming to raise competence 
level within the carbon industry and create 
a platform for exchanging knowledge 
and experiences.

Within management systems, we provide 
a variety of courses ranging from standard, 
auditor competence and operational 
excellence. This is relevant for companies 
in most industry sectors.

DNV is a recognised training provider 
within IT eduction. In 2008, the DNV 
Academy was selected as preferred  
supplier to the Dutch Tax Office, one  
of the largest IT organisations in the 
Benelux. Education services cover areas 
like IT architecture, business intelligence, 
security, IT management & process 
improvement and knowledge 
management.
 

impact through  
traiNiNg Within the maritime sector we published 

some 45 new or updated standards  
in 2008. From cable-laying barges to 
passenger vessels; from complex strength 
analysis of liquefied gas carriers to 
verification of complex automation 
systems; and from lifting appliances  
to fuel cell technology.

Within the oil, gas and energy sector we 
published 46 new or updated standards 
and recommended practices in 2008.  
They cover a wide range of areas – from 
revised standards for mobile offshore 
drilling and production units, through 
new methodologies and criteria for envi-
ronmental conditions and environmental 
loads, to riser integrity management.

NeW DNV staNDarDs iN 2008

in 2008, the software  
tool sesam celebrated 40  
years of addressing design  
and analysis needs for  
the offshore industry.40
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meet inez marhaug 
Job title: senior software Developer
Workplace: høvik, Norway
We do project: public transport travel pass

iNez’ We Do proJect at Work With iNez

 i develop software
 that makes inspec-
tion routines more efficient  
in the process industry.  
helping for example  
a refinery address the  
most critical risks related  
to their operations, assets  
and their peoples’ safety.

users worldwide rely on the safeti 
software for managing their plant 
throughout its life. it helps to 
improve business performance, 
minimise downtime and reduce 
effects on people, property and  
the environment. 

years ago, DNV launched its first soft-
ware tools to manage safety at sea. 
our sesam software has led the way 
in the design and analysis of offshore 
and marine structures for more than 
40 years, and Nauticus is an inte-
grated part of operations for ship-
owners and yards all over the world. 

502,000 it takes 30 minutes
 longer each way for 
me to take the bus to work 
instead of the car. But because 
my employer supports me  
in making an environmental 
impact, and pays 2/3 of  
my public transportation  
costs, i think it is worth it.

in oslo, Norway, it is four times 
more polluting to travel by car 
than to travel by public transport. 
33% of oslo’s population travel  
by public transport every day.

in 2004, transport was responsible 
for 23% of world energy-related 
ghg emissions with about three 
quarters coming from road vehicles. 
over the past decade, transport’s 
ghg emissions have increased  
at a faster rate than any other 
energy using sector.

23%x 4
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Facilitating sustainable growth
managing our people

Having Hired 1,600 new employees  
in 2008 alone, a net growth of 1,000 
employees, DNV’s demographic is under-
going a fundamental shift. 57% of current 
employees have been with the company 
for five years or less. Targeted efforts 
towards attraction and retention resulted 
in us meeting our ambitious manning 
targets, while at the same time adjusting 
its recruitment efforts as the financial 
crisis set in at the end of the year.

Growing in the same direction, in the sense 
of creating a common culture across DNV, 
was a priority in 2008. This also included 
the acquisition of Global energy Concepts 
(GeC), a wind energy consulting firm in the 
UsA. During the integration process, DNV 
worked purposefully to speed up systems 
integration, and to improve internal com-
munication and the exchange of people 
between GeC and the rest of DNV. 
 All new employees are introduced  

to DNV, in particular our mission, vision 
and values, through an updated “We in 
DNV” course, where senior employees are 
lecturers. The course is also intended to help 
employees begin building their network. 
Course attendance exceeded the 2008 target 
by 63%, with 1,568 employees taking part. 
 The new TopTech programme was  
piloted in 2008, where our top technical 
employees are given recognition for their 
unique expertise and the opportunity  
to hone their skills in an interdisciplinary 
business environment at UC Berkeley. To 
address a growing need for management 
capacity, more people than ever attended 
DNV’s manager Development programme. 
349 managers from DNV attended one  
or more of the modules in 2008, which  
is a 56% increase from 2007, and follows 
up on our goal to employ more female 
managers; an average of 21.7% of the 
participants were women. other leader-
ship initiatives to promote diversity at  
all levels in the organisation included  
the continuation of the european female 
mentoring programme, and a brand new 
Asian mentoring programme. 

THe business areas also focused on 
specific competence building, such as a 
surveyor training programme designed to 
consolidate and provide experience at accel-
erated speed to new employees in DNV 
maritime. DNV energy put extra resources 
in its knowledge booster programmes, 
exchanging employees across the regions.
 In addition to environmental measures 
already in place within the company, we 
introduced a programme to encourage

personal environmental commitment  
– the We do project. By receiving  
financial funding for pre-approved private 
projects, employees were supported in 
reducing their environmental footprint.  
employees were also encouraged to 
contribute by defining the pre-approved 
projects through online discussion forums. 
following the launch of the We do 
project, a Hot Topic forum was opened 
for employees to submit their ideas  
on tackling global warming.

in 2008, we implemenTed a new Interna-
tional Assignment policy to step up efforts  
to enable employee mobility across borders, 
while ensuring contractual consistency.  
This was important to assisting the devel-
opment of local competence.
 The Global employee forum (Gef) was 
designed during 2008 and is set to be 
implemented in 2009. Created to facilitate 
employee involvement in the strategy 
formulation process, Gef will ensure that 
employee representatives worldwide are 
informed and consulted regarding major 
activities and strategies affecting them. 
These representatives will have the oppor-
tunity to discuss strategy with the Ceo and 
members of the DNV executive Board.
 Improved internal communication with-
in the business areas was a result of the 
people satisfaction survey in 2007, where 
employees requested more access to job-
related information. The heads of the 
business areas responded with initia-
tives such as quarterly emails, updating 
employees on the most pertinent infor-
mation in their particular area. 

employees1 Females (%) Turnover2 (%) expatriates (%) local manage-
ment3 (%)

2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008

Africa 76 76 25 28 16.7 14.1 11.8 11.8 36.4 40.0

Americas 906 1 127 34 35 15.3 14.5 2.9 2.6 74.8 76.7

Asia / oceania 1 977 2 427 28 28 8.2 6.8 10.5 9.9 62.6 64.8

europe 1 892 2 003 36 36 10.7 9.7 2.7 2.4 88.7 89.3

middle east 218 227 24 26 10.6 17.3 12.4 12.8 12.0 17.6

Nordic / Baltic 375 389 34 33 6.4 7.9 1.1 0.8 90.7 88.9

Norway 2 247 2 445 30 31 6.3 7.4 1.1 1.4 92.5 93.7

2007 2008

DNV employees, permanent contract (Class A*) 7 245 8 259

DNV employees, long-term contract (Class C) 446 435

sub-contractors, non-DNV employees 2 777 3 016

extra personnel, non-DNV employees 571 584

Table 1  dnv worldwide Table 2  workForce  by employment contract

1 Number of Class A and C employees   2 percentage turnover (calculated from Class A employees)   3 local managers – managers who are native to country

*Approximately 30% of DNV 
employees (Class A) are covered 
by collective bargaining agree-
ments. DNV’s management  
has taken active steps to allow 
employees to participate in 
DNV’s governing bodies and 
strategy development process. 
DNV full-time and part-time 
employees (Class A) generally 
have the same benefits per 
salary grade per country.  
some benefits vary between 
permanent and temporary 
employees, e.g. eligibility  
for bonus.

Growing at an unprecedented speed while working with a younger 
demographic than ever before, we are actively maintaining,  
supporting and promoting competence levels. 

Figure 9  workForce by age
Calculated from Class A and C employees. 

Figure 10  Turnover by age, %
Calculated from Class A employees.  
Turnover by gender is 11,1% females and 8,1% males.
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Health and safety
managing our own risk 

This accident involved a section of a 
lattice tower, which was to be used for 
wind measurements. The employee, from 
the DNV-GeC seattle office, was using a 
harness when the section tipped over, and 
he was hit by the falling tower section.

THere were 521 incidenTs reported  
in 2008; 482 of these were work-related. 
We have seen a 30% increase in reports 
compared to 2007, and; nearly half of 
these were relates to hazards. This increase 
is not believed to reflect deterioration  
in health and safety standards but to  
be a result of improved reporting. 

 Approximately half of the absences  
due to accidents are related to surveys 
and inspections, and one quarter is 
related to transport and travelling. 

 Nearly two-thirds of the absences  
due to occupational health issues are 
related to office work, and one-third  
is related to surveys.

 Approximately half of the accidents 
were caused by employees slipping, 

tripping or falling, and more than one- 
quarter were caused by employees  
hitting or being struck by objects.

 more than one-quarter of the occu-
pational health issues were related to 
overstrain, exertion or repetitive strain, 
and another quarter were related to 
exposure to extreme temperatures or 
inadequate air quality.

THe number of incidenT reporTs  
per million hours worked varies for the 
different regions. To some extent, these 
differences are assumed to reflect differ-
ences in reporting culture. The number of 
incident reports per employee is expected 
to continue to grow as the process is 
embraced throughout the organisation.
 The sickness absence rate is reduced since 
2007 and is considered to be acceptable.
 In 2008 DNV continued the imple-
mentation of processes and activities  
to meet the oHsAs 18001 requirements. 
The development and implementation  
of necessary safety and health training 
will be a focus for 2009. An assessment 
of the implementation of the system  
will be made at year’s end, and the  

time schedule for an oHsAs 18001 
certification will be set.
 stress scanning is becoming more 
common throughout the organisation  
as units recognise the importance of 
identifying and minimising stress amongst 
employees. The scanning is based on a 
standardised questionnaire with questions 
related to health, lifestyle and perception 
of life in general. employees that are 
prone to suffer from stress are given the 
opportunity to talk with a work coach.

a pracTical safeTy course lasting 
two and a half days for surveyors has 
been rolled out globally in DNV during 
2008. The course consists of a half-day 
theoretical introduction followed by two 
days of practical training at a specialised 
training centre. We have contracted 
training centres in Norway, Korea and 
China. The training programmes have 
been tailor-made for surveyors in DNV, 
and all newly employed surveyors will  
go through this training course as safety 
induction from 2009. 
 A training module has been developed 
for our surveyors because the focus on  
the hazards of working in confined spaces  
is intensifying due to fatalities among 
workers who work in confined spaces  
in the maritime industry. We have also 
developed training module for learning 
to work at heights, in response to our 
own reported incidents and hazards. The 
roll-out began in 2008, but will mainly take 
place in 2009, where we plan to develop 
two more training modules, one for ‘emer-
gencies’ and one for ‘transfers to ship’.

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

fatal Accidents 0 0 0 1 1

Accident:

- lost time accident (Harm to people, absence > 8hrs) 31 27 32 41 34

- Injury accident (Harm to people, absence < 8hrs) 41 48 61 66 85

occupational Health Issue, with absence 0 10 10 14 13

lTA 2.8 2.3 2.8 3.1 2.1

sAI 37.6 32.8 24.3 50.8 23.0

sickness absence rate (%) 2.3 2.3 2.0 2.0 1.9

occupational Health issue:  
work environment conditions  
(including psychosocial work 
environment and ergonomics)  
where exposure may result in illness. 

lTa (lost Time accident frequency): 
number of lost Time Accidents / 
million hours worked.

sai (severity accident index):  
number of days of absence due  
to lost Time Accidents / million  
hours worked. 

sickness absence rate (%):  
(sickness absence / number  
of hours worked)*100 

Table 3  HealTH and saFeTy sTaTisTics Figure 11  number oF incidenTs  per regIon / mIllIon HoUrS WorKeD lost Time  
Accidents

occupational 
Health issues

Injury 
Accidents

As driving is seen as one of the significant 
risks faced by our employees, defensive 
driver training is being implemented  
in larger parts of the organisation.
 one example of reported exposure  
to extreme temperature comes from the 
fujairah laboratory where the outdoor 
temperature can reach 40ºC. The fuel 
sample burning processes can elevate the 
temperature to an intolerable level during 
the summer season. The existing fresh air 
system is now being upgraded to an air 
conditioning system.

awareness of office safeTy issues is 
improving and we have seen an increase 
in regular office evacuation exercises being 
implemented in different countries.
 Risks related to employee safety are 
closely monitored in geographical areas 
suffering from war, terrorist threats, high 
crime rates, serious epidemics or natural 
disasters; this information is shared 
throughout the organisation. The risk 
assessment process and principles related 
to business travel have been improved 
during the year. for example, safety and 
security issues were discussed in detail 
before the election in Angola in september, 
drawing on valuable experiences from the 
earlier election in Nigeria. It was empha-
sised that the safety of all employees 
comes first, and extra security measures 
were taken to ensure the safety of our 
employees. The contract which ensures 
that employees will be evacuated in 
critical situations due to either a medical 
condition or civil unrest has been effec-
tively utilised once in 2008. 

managing the health and safety of our own employees goes hand-  
in-hand with our purpose of safeguarding life, property and the  
environment. sadly, 2008 was not a year without tragedy for us.  
A fatal accident happened near Corpus Christi, Texas, on 9 November. 
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kg co2 kg no2 kg so2

2006 2007 2008 2006 2007 2008 2006 2007 2008

Høvik 252 164 90 0.24 0.16 0.09 0.4 0.26 0.14

london 1 890 977 577 2.39 2.14 0.59 7.62 2.55 0

singapore 4 712 5 881 6 613 4.46 6.3 5.85 7.43 13.65 12.68

Rio 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Houston 3 337 4 566 2 810 1.21 10.49 8.76 0.12 11.21 1.56

Total average emission 913 1 201 1 039 0.74 1.94 1.59 1.28 2.79 1.5

Impact on the environment

on 23 December DNV was awarded the Iso 14001 certificate from  
the Dutch certification body TNo Certification B.V. The certification 
process helped us put focus on environmental performance and build  
a culture of environmental responsibility throughout the organisation. 

managing THe impacT oF our operaTions

employees all around the world 
have been enthusiastically engaged in 
identifying and implementing initiatives 
to reduce, reuse and recycle.
 Implementing an environmental man-
agement system in compliance with  
the Iso 14001 standard throughout  
an organisation operating in many 

countries has been a challenge. Hence  
we have seen many different solutions 
illustrated by the following examples:
 In poland, the process was primarily 
employee-driven. A lot of initiatives were 
implemented long before the decision  
to apply for certification was made. 
examples of these initiatives include 

energy saving measures, use of eco-
logical paper and separation of waste. 
Handling separated waste is not provided 
by the authorities, and separate agree-
ments have been established with private 
waste handling companies which handle 
almost each type of waste that we separate. 
one of the actions under implementation 
in poland is to help employees take care 
of hazardous household waste. 

in addiTion To energy saving and 
waste handling measures, the Benelux 
offices replaced the traditional lease car 
policy with a “Green mobility policy”, 
which encourages use of public transport, 
provides company cars with below average 
emissions only, and provides incentives 
for employees who select smaller but safe 
cars or lower emission cars. The average 
Co2 emission per company car has been 
reduced by 3.2%, and the overall Co2 
emission from business travels has been 
reduced by 1% despite increased travels 
due to growth in business. 
 Implementation of the environmental 
management system in China started  
in 2007 with the setup of a countrywide 
support organisation and continual aware-
ness campaigns e.g. posters, a Green 
Consumption presentation, ceramic cups 
to all employees, encouraging employees 
to take Iso 14001 web training course, 
and training of subcontracted house-
keeping staff in waste separation and 
recycling. To establish a benchmark for 
energy consumption, old energy bills  
have been reviewed to provide a trend 
analysis for the last three years. 

Table 5  emissions From energy consumpTion  per perSonFigure 12  emissions From energy consumpTion  per perSon

To supporT THe reducTion of environ-
mental impact from day-to-day operations, 
DNV Norway have environmental objec-
tives within energy, waste, and travelling. 
The shuttle bus service at head office has 
been extended to make it easier for employ-
ees to use public transport to work. A fleet 
of five electric cars to use for external 
meetings has been established at head 
office. laboratories and test facilities at 
Høvik and in Bergen are being upgraded. 
A programme for awareness-building 
amongst all employees in Norway, including 
lunch meetings and a mandatory online 
course, has been implemented. 
 

UK operations introduced an initiative  
to encourage employees to think about  
whether they really needed to travel to 
meetings by air. employees were asked to  
register every flight saved from using an 
alternative mode of travel or communication.  
The ‘I’ve saved a flight’ initiative saved 109 
flights and 160 air travel hours by UK employ-
ees. This idea was shared with the rest of the  
organisation and other countries have also  
adopted this initiative. for many of the DNV  
offices, obtaining reliable measurements for  
waste handling and energy consumption has  
been a considerable challenge. Data quality 
improvement activities must be continued. 

2007 2008
change 

2007-2008

non-
renewable 

2008

renewable ex
hydropower 

2008
Hydropower

2008

Høvik  16 098  12 484 -22% 3% 34% 63%

london  9 163  8 267 -10% 0% 100% 0%

singapore  11 365  9 754 -14% 100% 0% 0%

Rio  1 133  1 216 7% 15% 2% 83%

Houston park Ten  5 309  4 468 -16% 95% 5% 0%

Houston Vps la porte  29 740  29 464 -1% 99% 1% 0%

Aberdeen  3 242  3 432 6% 93% 0% 7%

shanghai  1 886  1 943 3% 100% 0% 0%

milan  880  1 077 22% 80% 0% 20%

Rotterdam  6 074  4 371 -28% 100% 0% 0%

sopot  2 471  2 340 -5% 96% 2% 2%

average per person  11 122  8 601 -23% 16% 32% 52%

Table 4  
energy consumpTion  
KWH / perSon

note: The increase  
in emissions from 2006  
to 2007 was due to 
increases in singapore 
and Houston. 

The increase in specific 
emissions in singapore 
was due to a shift from 
gas to oil. 

The increase in specific 
emissions in Houston  
was due to higher elec-
tricity consumption and 
updated emission factors 
specific to Houston.

kg Co2 kg No2 kg so2
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THe board of direcTors
This is the foundation’s highest 
authority. The Board of Directors 
consists of a chairman and nine 
members. six of these are selected 
from different business sectors 
served by DNV so that no group  
has a majority. four members are 
elected among the employees. 
Chairman of the Board is Atle 
Bergshaven.

THe council
The council is composed of 40  
members; senior representatives  
of the industries served by DNV and 
6 elected among the employees. 
some of the main functions of the 
Council are  to appoint the Chairman 
and the members of the Board of 
Directors and to approve amendments 
to the DNV statutes. The Council 
membership structure ensures that 
no single stakeholder group has 
decisive control. The members 
represent users, customers and 
others interested in DNV’s activities. 
Chairman of the Council is Trond 
Harald Klaveness. 

THe conTrol commiTTee. The Council 
appoints three members to the  
Control Committee from amongst 
its own members. The Control Com-
mittee shall supervise the founda-
tion’s finances, accounts and audit  
activities, and shall to such extent as  
it may find necessary inspect records, 
correspondence, accounting vouchers 
and other information. members of 
the Control Committee cannot hold 
any other position in the foundation 
than their membership of the Council. 
Chairman of the Control Committee 
is erling Øverland. 

THe elecTion commiTTee. The election 
Committee shall submit recommen-
dations on all elections to be made 
by the Council. It consists of four 
members elected from among Council 
members who hold no other office  
in the foundation, and of the Council 
Chairman who shall also be the Com-
mittee Chairman. Chairman is Trond 
Harald Klaveness. 

see full member list on:
   dnv.com / moreondnv  
/ profile / management

cHina TecHnical commiTTee:

chairman: stephen pan,  
World-Wide Shipping Agency Ltd

passenger sHip TecHnical 
commiTTee miami

chairman: Capt. William Wright, 
Royal Caribbean Cruises Ltd.

THe cyprus TecHnical commiTTee

chairman: R. Thompson,  
Unicom Management Services Ltd. 

THe dnv ferry commiTTee 

chairman: Håkan enlund,   
Aker Finnyards Oy

THe dnv wind energy commiTTee

chairman: Huub Den Rooijen,  
Shell WindEnergy

THe german commiTTee

chairman: Thomas Rehder,  
Carsten Rehder Schiffsmakler  
u. Reederei GmbH & Co.

THe german TecHnical commiTTee

chairman: Horst Dieter spang, 
Carsten Rehder Schiffsmakler  
u. Reederei GmbH & Co.

THe greek commiTTee

chairman: Theodoros Veniamis, 
Golden Union Shipping Co. S.A.

THe greek TecHnical commiTTee

chairman: s. Hatzigrigoris,  
Kristen Navigation Inc.

THe iranian commiTTee

chairman: m. souri, National Iranian 
Tanker Co.

THe Japanese owners’ TecHnical 

commiTTee, chairman: makoto 
Taniguchi, M.O. Ship Tech Inc.

THe Japanese TecHnical commiTTee

chairman: prof. Dr. masahiko fujikubo, 
Dep. of Naval Architecture & Ocean

THe korean commiTTee

chairman: Won Gab Jang,  
STX Shipbuilding Co. Ltd.

THe korean TecHnical commiTTee

chairman: s.s. shin, STX Shipbuilding

THe naval surface crafT  
TecHnical commiTTee

chairman: Jan Henrik eriksen  

THe nordic commiTTee for  
safeTy aT sea

chairman: Knut l. Arnesen,  
Wilh. Wilhelmsen ASA

THe norTH american commiTTee

chairman: Harri Kulovaara,  
Royal Caribbean International

THe pipeline commiTTee

chairman: Kim mork, DNV

THe polisH commiTTee

chairman: leszek Trachimowicz,  
PZM

THe rig owners’ commiTTee

chairman: mike Hall, Transocean

THe souTH american commiTTee 

chairman: erling.s. lorentzen,  
Lorentzen Empreendimentos S/A

THe souTH asian commiTTee

chairman: K. m. sheth, The Great  
Eastern Shipping Company Ltd.

THe souTH easT asian commiTTee

chairman: Chiau Beng Choo,  
Keppel Offshore & Marine Ltd

THe uk commiTTee

chairman: Jan Kopernicki,  
Shell International Trading and  
Shipping Company Ltd

uae TecHnical commiTTee

chairman: Talal A. Bakheet,  
Vela

exTernal advisory commiTTees

DNV has established non-decisionmaking committees 
consisting of key customers and technical compe-
tence centres. They advise on how to develop our 
services and our interests in relevant geographical 
areas. some also advice on DNV Class Rule proposals.

Governance and committees
governing bodies

Advisory boards of DNV 
units holding accredi-
tations from national 
accreditation bodies 

  argenTina
cerTiFicaTion advisory board

chair: Carlos Ríos

  ausTralia
governing board For 
cerTiFicaTion

chair: Thomas Vogth-eriksen, 
DNV

  belgium/THe neTHerlands/
luXemburg (beneluX)
cerTiFicaTion and parTialiTy 
commiTTee 

chair: paul van den Heuvel, 
Heerema Zwijndrecht B.V.

  uk
cerTiFicaTion and parTialiTy 
commiTTee 

chair: John Darby, Huntsman

  braZil
commiTTee For saFeguarding 

parTialiTy, chair: luiz Antônio 
Abbdalla de moura 

  cHina
governing commiTTee For 
HealTH, saFeTy & environmenTal 
cerTiFicaTion

chair: sharon Guo, DNV

  denmark
cerTiFicaTion advisory board

chair: Rikke Topp petersen, DNV

  finland and balTic sTaTes:
commiTTee For saFeguarding 
imparTialiTy (advisory board)

chair: Kimmo Haarala, DNV

  france
cerTiFicaTion commiTTee

chair: Jacques mangon, RHF

  germany/ausTria/
swiTZerland
cerTiFicaTion advisory board

chair: Dirk Kremkow, Renk AG

  Hong kong    
cerTiFicaTion advisory board

chair: Wilson K. Tsui, DNV

  india
advisory board For 
cerTiFicaTion services

chair: Neelkanta Krishnakumar, 
DNV 

  iTaly
commiTTee For saFeguarding 
imparTialiTy

chair: Giovanni florio,  
FS Italcertifer Scpa

QualiTy subcommiTTee

chair: Giovanni florio,  
FS Italcertifer Scpa

environmenTal and occupaTional 
HealTH and saFeTy subcommiTTee

chair: Alessandro segale,  
Università degli Studi di Milano

producT cerTiFicaTion commiTTee 

chair: Giovanni florio,  
FS Italcertifer Scpa

  Japan
advisory commiTTee For 
managemenT sysTem service

chair: Hiraku yanagida, DNV

  korea
managemenT commiTTee

chair: Ahn, In Kyoon, DNV

  norway 
advisory board

chair: Jan-Henry Hansen

  spain
advisory board

chair: Buenaventura Guamis, 
Universidad Autónoma de 
Barcelona

  sweden
cerTiFicaTion commiTTee

chair: staffan Arve, DNV

  usa
cerTiFicaTion advisory board

chair: Ted mercer,  
Reed Tool Company

  Taiwan  
TaF commiTTee board

chair: shuh Woei yu,  
National Central University

DNV is incorporated as a Norwegian foundation. As such,  
it is self-owned and independent. No single stakeholder  
group can have decisive control.

energy consumpTion
A survey of the 10 largest offices (Aberdeen, 
Houston, Høvik, london, milan, Rio de 
Janeiro, Rotterdam/ Barendrecht, shanghai, 
singapore, and sopot), covering approx-
imately 47% of DNV’s employees, has 
been conducted in order to map energy 
consumption.
 The average energy consumption per 
person in the selected offices was 8,601 
kWh in 2008, a decrease from 11,122 kWh 
in 2007. The decrease is a function of 
general energy reduction initiatives and 
an increase in number of employees as 
well as some special circumstances; 

 DNV Rotterdam moved to a more 
energy efficient building in Barendrecht. 

 The Høvik office has made technical 
upgrades to the energy system. 

 The Houston office underwent energy 
intensive renovation activities in 2007, 
and was closed for one week in 2008. 
seven of the ten offices met their energy 
reduction targets for 2008.  
  
32% of energy consumption was renew-
able energy other than hydropower (13% 
in 2007). When hydropower is included, 
renewable energy constitutes 84% of 
consumption (82% in 2007) in the ten 
largest offices.

emissions from energy consumpTion 
A survey of the five largest DNV offices 
(Houston, Høvik, london, Rio de Janeiro, 
and singapore), covering approximately 
35% of all employees, has been conducted 
in order to map emission to air from energy 
consumption.

The emissions from energy use per person 
per year at the selected offices were 1,039 
kg Co2 (1,201 kg in 2007), 1.59 kg No2 (1.94 
kg in 2007) and 1.50 kg so2 (2.79 kg in 2007). 
 The decrease in emissions per person 
compared to 2007 is mainly due to the 
following changes:

 energy saving initiatives has resulted  
in a decrease in total energy consumption 
of 14% for the five largest offices.  

 The largest user of electricity, the office 
buildings at Høvik has changed principles 
for choosing energy source and is now 
choosing the most environmental friendly 
source independent of cost. Heat pump and 
electrical boiler are prioritises and oil-fired 
boiler is only used in periods of cold spells. 

 The london office used 14% coal based 
electricity in 2007 and changed to 100% 
renewable electricity in 2008.

 The general increase in number  
of employees.

Handling of HaZardous wasTe
DNV petroleum services (DNVps) labo-
ratories reported the disposal of 143.26 
tonnes of hazardous waste in 2008  
(an increase from 117 tonnes in 2007),  
of which 138.8 tonnes; 97% was delivered 
to licensed waste-handling facilities,  
2.89 tonnes; 2% consisted of oil that was 
burned off to the air, and 1.57 tonnes;  
1% was neutralised or treated before 
being disposed off in sewage system.

Handling of office wasTe
A programme for measuring waste was 
initiated for the ten largest offices. 

The average waste per employee for the 
seven offices included in the programme 
was measured to be 0.243 tonnes per year. 
36% of their total waste was reported  
to be recycled. 
 The target for 2008 for the DNV offices 
in Aberdeen and london was to reduce 
waste disposal to land fill per person by 
5%. Both offices exceeded this target  
by far with a reduction of waste disposal  
to landfill of 23% and 21% respectively. 
 The objective of head office at Høvik  
was to reduce waste generation per  
person by 5% from 2007 to 2009. This has 
already been achieved in 2008 with an  
8% reduction. The objective for 2009 may 
therefore be adjusted to achieve better 
waste management practices. 
 The Rio de Janerio office reduced con-
sumption of plastic and styrofoam cups by  
94%, and paper printed by 31%. Double 
sided printing and use of recycled paper 
has been encouraged and 47% of total 
printing is now double sided and 67% of 
the paper used is recycled paper, all these 
performance results are within the range  
of or better than the targets set. 
 poland’s sopot office’s waste target for 
2008 was to reduce use of paper by 5%. 
The office exceeded its target reducing use  
of paper by 12%. Additionally they have 
increased their use of recycled paper by 30%.
 Three of the offices included in the 
programme had to conclude that they had 
not been able to establish an applicable 
waste handling baseline for 2007, and  
were not able to determine if they met 
their 2008 waste reduction targets. 

laboratories chemicals waste oil 

other 
hazardous 

waste Total 

Høvik 12.28 9.30 1.40 22.98

fujairah 4.88 4.70 0.90 10.48

Houston 15.36 13.90 1.50 30.76

singapore 12.44 18.00 3.30 33.74

Rotterdam 23.20 15.60 6.49 45.29

Total 68.17 61.51 13.59 143.26

Table 6  HaZardous wasTe  
DnV petroleUm SerVIceS (DnVpS). tonneS

Figure 13  disposal oF wasTe 
DnV petroleUm SerVIceS (DnVpS)

Collected by  
licensed contractor
138.8 tonnes

oil burned off to air
2.89 tonnes

Neutralised or treated 
before being disposed 
off in sewage system
1.57 tonnes

97%

2%

1%

impacT on THe environmenT
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Commitment to society

DNV is present in some 100 countries and is committed to sustain-
able development in the societies in which we operate. In 2008, DNV 
reached the same number of employees in Asia /oceania as in Norway.
Risks and opportunities associated with our global presence are  
continuously monitored. Within DNV’s Corporate social Responsibility  
Action plan, particular focus is given to topics such as anti-corruption, 
ethics, human rights, transparency and accountability.

our corporTe responsibiliTy
dealing wiTH dilemmas. In 2008, we 
started the roll-out of the Dealing with 
Dilemmas workshop programme that was 
developed in 2007. In this first year, sessions 
have been held for managers and employees 
in 16 countries all over the world. so far, 
approximately 25% of all employees have 
attended these sessions in 2008. The goal 
is to reach all employees with dilemma 
related training by the end of 2009, and 
that these sessions shall subsequently be 
held in department meetings at regular 
intervals. The programme focuses on topics 
such as anti-corruption, ethics and integrity, 
and gives training in our policies and 
procedures. feedback from the sessions 
will be used by the CsR Board to assess 
whether DNV has the appropriate mecha-
nisms, guidelines and instructions in place 
to deal with everyday dilemmas relevant 
to our employees. The feedback will also 
be saved in a dilemma bank which can be 
used for organisational learning across 
regions and business areas.

influencing THe agenda in global 
forums. DNV emphasises the importance 
of working with national and interna-
tional companies and organisations on 
the business contributions to sustainable 
development. Through our member-
ship in the World Business Council for 
sustainable Development (WBCsD),  
DNV is contributing to the United Nations 
framework Convention on Climate Change 
(UNfCCC) process by sharing insights 
which we believe would enhance the 
effectiveness of a future international 
climate change agreement.  

business plays a key role in providing 
solutions to the climate change challenge. 
The energy and Climate group of the 
WBCsD has therefore worked on a 
business response to the Bali Action plan 
with specific recommendations to the 
international climate change negotiations.  
During 2008, the president and Ceo of 
DNV co-chaired parts of this work focus-
ing on market mechanisms and finance. 
We are also an active member of IeTA 
(International emissions Trading Associa-
tion); a non-governmental organisation 
accredited by the UNfCCC and the 
business community voice on emissions 
trading. further, DNV is represented  
as a member of the Board supervising  
the Voluntary Carbon standard (VCs); 
ensuring the environmental integrity  
of this voluntary standard for crediting  
of emission reductions from projects.

in 2008, dnv esTablisHed the Climate 
Benefit project (KlimaGevinst) in collabo-
ration with 13 business partners and the 
Norwegian think-tank mandag morgen. 
Through a number of meetings and sem-
inars, the group explored how politicians 
and businesses can contribute to meet  
the challenges posed by climate change. 
The work and the business recommen-
dations were summarised in a report 
presented to the Norwegian minister  
of the environment and International 
Development in January 2009.

more on our work with Corporate 
Responsibility can be found on
   dnv.com / moreondnv / cr

a survey was carried out during 2008 
to measure the reputation of DNV among 
our key stakeholders. An agency carried 
out qualitative in-depth interviews with 
98 respondents, representing customers, 
prospects, lost customers, industry asso-
ciations, authorities and media globally. 
The findings were overwhelmingly positive, 
but also identified areas of improvement.
 Whereas most stakeholders view DNV 
as a respected international classification/
certification company, ranked among the  
top three in almost all of the surveyed 

segments, they have a less clear view  
of other parts of the company. many  
also point out the challenge of being 
both a supplier of third party services 
and advisory services, but feel that  
DNV handles this well. 
 
THey parTicularly mention the high 
level of quality, professionalism, and 
qualifications and training, and that DNV 
is strong in technology and R&D. They 
view DNV as very scandinavian, which  
is both seen as positive and negative.  

Henrik O. Madsen, President and CEO

 dnv works to continuously
 demonstrate responsible 
practices according to the un global 
compact principles, both within  
our own organisaton and those  
of our customers in realising  
dnv’s purpose to safeguard life, 
property and the environment.

The Universal Declaration of Human Rights (UDHR) turned 
60 years in December 2008. DNV focuses on human rights 
through both our operations and through the services  
we deliver. We promote diversity and democracy in our 
own company and our assurance processes work to ensure  
that human rights requirements are met in global supply  
chains for customers in a number of industry sectors.  
In 2008, DNV also contributed to the advocacy efforts. 
Amongst others through the Norwegian government 
program “Refleks” where we focused on ways in which 
human rights are matters of concern for business.

In order to anticipate future 
challenges and to continuously 
address stakeholders’ changing 
expectations to DNV, different 
types of engagement are used  
to listen to our stakeholders.

lisTening To our 
sTakeHolders

un global compacT supporTbusiness and Human rigHTs

parTnering wiTH red cross 

Through support to specific Red Cross 
programs, DNV’s efforts related to climate 
change reach local communities in the 
hurricane belt of Central America and the 
Caribbean. As the risks to lives and liveli-
hoods in this area increase with stronger 
and more frequent storms, Red Cross 
volunteers work with local communities 
to build community resilience to weather-
related disasters.
 DNV and the Red Cross continue to help 
vulnerable people in China. As a response 
to the sichuan earthquake in 2008, not  

DNV and Red Cross work together to provide access to safe drinking  
water and improved sanitation for vulnerable people around the globe.  
Drinking water wells, latrines and hygiene promotion have already bene- 
fited thousands of people in China, Kenya, Belize and Indonesia. In 2008,  
DNV and Red Cross started a cooperation on water supply in rural Vietnam.

only did DNV employees initiate donation 
campaigns for relief operations, inspiring 
employees on other continents to do the 
same, but they are also working closely with 
the Red Cross to rebuild an elementary 
school that was damaged in the earthquake. 
 DNV and Red Cross share knowledge  
in order to build each others capacities.  
our risk management experts assist the 
Norwegian Red Cross to implement risk 
management, ultimately increasing the 
capability of the Red Cross to prevent  
and relieve suffering. 

parTnersHip
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amounts in noK million

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

income statement

Operating revenue 9 560 8 126 7 297 6 683 5 945

Depreciation 189 166 140 136 116

Operating profit 1 188 873 794 750 483

Net financial income (expenses) (82) (1) 31 49 (52)

Profit before tax 1 106 872 826 799 432

Profit for the year 642 536 546 528 223

Balance sheet

Fixed assets 2 467 2 120 2 027 2 026 1 637

Current assets 6 015 4 803 4 362 3 435 2 684

Total assets 8 482 6 922 6 389 5 461 4 321

Equity 4 545 4 492 3 895 3 239 2 699

Provisions and long-term liabilities 919 409 536 634 517

Current liabilities 3 018 2 021 1 958 1 588 1 105

cash flow items, working

capital and investments:

Purchase of tangible fixed assets 234 176 112 139 126

Working capital 2 997 2 781 2 403 1 847 1 579

Cash flow 1 760 749 710 678 397

Number of employees 8 694 7 691 6 765 6 095 6 236

Financial ratios

Profitability:

Operating margin 12.4% 10.7% 10.9% 11.2% 8.1%

Pre tax profit margin 11.6% 10.7% 11.3% 12.0% 7.3%

Net profit margin 6.7% 6.6% 7.5% 7.9% 3.8%

Return on total assets 14.2% 14.4% 15.3% 16.4% 11.9%

Return on equity 24.5% 20.8% 23.1% 26.9% 17.7%

liquidity:

Current ratio 2.0 2.4 2.2 2.2 2.4

Liquidity reserves 2 130 2 344 2 032 1510 999

Liquidity cover 26.0% 33.1% 31.9% 26.0% 18.7%

leverage:

Equity ratio 53.6% 64.9% 61.0% 59.3% 62.5%

stiFtelsen
Det norsKe Veritas

1 january - 31 DecemBer
amounts in noK million

Det norsKe Veritas
grouP

2008 2007 2006 note 2008 2007 2006

oPerating reVenue

0.0 0.4 0.0 Sales revenue 9 560.3 8 125.6 7 297.4

0.0 0.4 0.0 total operating revenue 3 9 560.3 8 125.6 7 297.4

oPerating exPenses

0.0 0.0 0.0 Payroll expenses 4,6,7 4 986.6 4 385.0 3 850.6

0.0 0.0 0.0 Depreciation 13,14,16 176.3 150.4 140.2

0.0 0.0 0.0 Write down of goodwill 13 12.2 15.8 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 Other operating expenses 5 3 196.8 2 701.6 2 512.5

0.0 0.4 0.0 operating profit 1 188.2 872.8 794.1

Financial income anD exPenses

(76.2) 508.5 50.1 Financial income (93.5) 86.1 112.0

0.5 (0.8) (0.6) Financial expenses 11.6 (87.1) (80.6)

(75.7) 507.7 49.5 Net financial income (expenses) 9 (81.9) (1.0) 31.4

(75.7) 508.1 49.5 Profit before tax 1 106.3 871.8 825.5

(27.2) (14.1) (9.6) Tax expense 11 (464.7) (335.6) (279.7)

(102.9) 494.0 39.9 Profit (loss) for the year 641.6 536.2 545.8

(102.9) 494.0 39.9 Transferred to other equity

Key figures Income statement

Profitability

Operating margin: 
Operating profit x 100 / 
Operating revenue

Pre-tax profit margin: 
Profit before tax x 100 / 
Operating revenue

Net profit margin: 
Profit for the year x 100 / 
Operating revenue

Return on total assets:
(Operating profit  
+ Financial income) x 100/
Average total assets

Return on equity:
Profit before tax x 100 / 
Average equity

liquidity

Cash flow:
Profit before tax  
+ Depreciation  
-  Taxes payable

Current ratio:
Current assets /  
Current liabilities

Liquidity reserves:
Cash and bank deposits + 
Short-term financial
investments

Liquidity cover:
Liquidity reserves x 100 /  
(Total operating
expenses-Depreciation)

leverage

Equity ratio:
Equity x 100 / Total assets

Definition of ratios
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Atle Bergshaven
Chairman Audun Brandsæter

Mary Grace Anderson

Hilde M. TonneMaury Devine

Yan Ma

Sille Grjotheim

Niksa PadovanAxel C. Eitzen John H. Wiik
Henrik O. Madsen 
President and CEO

stiFtelsen
Det norsKe Veritas

as Per 31 DecemBer
amounts in noK million

Det norsKe Veritas
grouP

2008 2007 2006 note 2008 2007 2006

assets

FixeD assets

intangible fixed assets

0.0 0.4 3.5 Deferred tax assets 11 486.8 130.4 198.6

0.0 0.0 0.0 Goodwill 13 215.4 104.6 159.7

0.0 0.0 0.0 Other intangible assets 14 29.7 8.3 0.0

0.0 0.4 3.5 Total intangible fixed assets 731.9 243.3 358.3

tangible fixed assets

6.4 6.5 6.8 Land, buildings and other property 942.3 901.7 884.3

0.0 0.0 0.0 Office equipment, fixtures and fittings 378.9 277.3 253.7

6.5 6.5 6.8 Total tangible fixed assets 16 1 321.2 1 179.0 1 138.0

Financial fixed assets

240.0 240.0 240.0 Investments in subsidiaries 2 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 Investments in associates 15 59.9 43.7 27.6

0.3 1.4 1.3 Long-term shareholdings 17 22.6 15.3 16.2

0.0 0.0 0.0 Prepaid pension 7 0.0 372.9 234.3

0.3 0.2 0.3 Other long-term receivables 19 331.4 265.3 252.5

240.6 241.6 241.6 Total financial fixed assets 413.9 697.2 530.6

247.1 248.5 251.8 total fixed assets 2 467.0 2 119.5 2 026.9

current assets

Debtors

0.0 0.0 0.0 Trade debtors 2 567.6 1 718.6 1 525.5

0.0 0.0 0.0 Work in progress 1 011.5 660.4 580.6

0.0 0.0 0.0 Other debtors 317.2 217.4 225.1

0.0 0.0 0.0 Total debtors 3 896.2 2 596.4 2 331.2

834.2 938.6 438.7 Short-term financial investments 8 1 134.4 1 528.7 1 303.5

21.2 1.5 2.0 Cash and bank deposits 20 984.0 677.5 727.1

855.4 940.1 440.7 total current assets 6 014.6 4 802.6 4 361.8

1 102.4 1 188.6 692.5 total assets 8 481.6 6 922.1 6 388.7

stiFtelsen
Det norsKe Veritas

as Per 31 DecemBer
amounts in noK million

Det norsKe Veritas
grouP

2008 2007 2006 note 2008 2007 2006

eQuity anD liaBilities 

eQuity

Paid-in capital

283.5 283.5 283.5 Foundation capital 283.5 283.5 283.5

Retained earnings

772.1 875.0 381.0 Other equity 4 261.7 4 208.5 3 611.2

1 055.6 1 158.5 664.5 total equity 23 4 545.2 4 492.0 3 894.7

liaBilities

Provisions

0.0 0.0 0.0 Pension liabilities 7 722.8 233.9 376.2

0.0 0.0 0.0 Deferred tax 11 15.7 21.1 8.7

17.0 17.0 16.9 Other provisions 180.2 153.9 150.7

17.0 17.0 16.9 Total provisions 918.7 408.9 535.6

current liabilities

0.0 0.0 0.0 Overdrafts 0.0 5.6 4.5

0.0 0.0 0.0 Trade creditors 257.9 221.6 213.4

26.7 11.1 8.7 Tax payable 429.4 285.8 220.1

0.0 0.0 0.0 Public duties payable 313.7 246.3 204.1

3.2 2.0 2.4 Other short-term liabilities 18 2 016.8 1 261.9 1 316.3

29.8 13.1 11.1 Total current liabilities 3 017.7 2 021.2 1 958.4

46.8 30.1 28.0 total liabilities 3 936.4 2 430.1 2 494.0

1 102.4 1 188.6 692.5 total eQuity anD liaBilities 8 481.6 6 922.1 6 388.7

Balance sheet
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The financial statements have been prepared in accordance 
with the Norwegian Accounting Act of 1998 and generally 
accepted  accounting principles in Norway.

Consolidation prinCiples. The consolidated statements 
include Stiftelsen Det Norske Veritas and all companies in 
which Stiftelsen Det Norske Veritas directly or indirectly has 
actual control. The group accounts show Det Norske Veritas’ 
consolidated income statement, balance sheet and statement 
of cash flow as a single economic entity. Subsidiaries follow 
the same accounting principles as the parent company. 
Intercompany transactions have been eliminated in the 
consolidated accounts. 
 Acquired subsidiaries are reported in the financial state-
ments on the basis of the parent company’s acquisition cost. 
The cost of the shares in the parent company’s books is 
eliminated against the equity in the subsidiary at the date  
of acquisition. The acquisition cost is allocated by attributing 
fair values to the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired. 
Surplus value in excess of the fair value of identifiable net 
assets is reported in the balance sheet as goodwill. Goodwill 
is amortised linearly through the income statement over  
its expected useful economic life.
 The allocation of costs in a business combination is changed 
if new information on the fair value becomes available  
and is applicable on the date when control is assumed.  
The allocation may be altered until the annual accounts  
are presented or prior to the expiry of a 12-month period.

translation of foreign subsidiaries. When trans-
lating the financial statements of the foreign subsidiaries  
to Norwegian currency, the items in the income statement 
are translated at the average exchange rate for the financial 
year. Assets and liabilities in foreign operations, including 
goodwill and fair value adjustments, are translated into NOK 
using the exchange rate applicable on the balance sheet 
date. Exchange-rate differences are recognised in equity. 
 Forward exchange contracts related to hedging of net 
investments in foreign subsidiaries are treated as hedging 
instruments where the exchange rate differences of the 
hedging instrument are recognised in the equity. 

Cash flow hedges. The effective portion of the gain  
or loss on the hedging instrument is not accounted for. 
Gains or losses on the hedging instrument are recorded as 
financial income or expenses at realization. Any ineffective 
portion is recognized in the income statement.

subsidiaries /assoCiates. Investments in subsidiaries are 
valued at the cost method in the parent company accounts. 
The investment is valued as cost of acquiring shares in the 
subsidiary, provided write down is not required. Write down 
to fair value is carried out when the reduction in value is 
caused by circumstances which may not be regarded as 
incidental, and deemed necessary by generally accepted 
accounting principles. Write downs are reversed when  
the cause of the initial write down is no longer present.  
 An associate is an entity in which the Group has a signif-
icant influence but does not control the management of its 
finances and operations (normally when the Group owns 
20%-50% of the company). Investments in associated com-
panies are valued in accordance with the equity method. 
The share of profits is based on profits after tax in the 
associated company, less internal gains and possible amor-
tisation of surplus value caused by the cost of shares being 
higher than the acquired share of equity. In the income 
statement, the share of profit is stated as financial income/
financial expenses.
 When the Group’s share of a loss exceeds the Group’s 
investment in an associate, the amount carried in the 
Group’s balance sheet is reduced to zero and further losses 
are not recognised unless the Group has an obligation  
to cover any such loss.
 In the parent account, dividends, group contributions  
and other distributions are recognised in the same year as 
they are recognised in the subsidiary financial statement.  
If dividends / group contribution exceed withheld profits 
after acquisition, the excess amount represents repayment  
of invested capital, and the distribution will be deducted  
from the recorded value of the acquisition in the balance 
sheet for the parent company.

use of estimates. The management has used estimates 
and assumptions that have affected assets, liabilities, income, 
expenses and information on potential liabilities in accord-
ance with generally accepted accounting principles in Norway.

Cash flow statement Notes

stiFtelsen
Det norsKe Veritas

1 january - 31 DecemBer
amounts in noK million

Det norsKe Veritas
grouP

2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006

cash FloW From oPerations

(75.7) 508.1 49.5 Profit before tax 1 106.3 871.8 825.5

0.0 (0.4) 0.0 Gain/loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets (1.3) (0.4) (18.9)

0.0 0.0 0.0 Gain on divestments 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 Depreciations and writedown 188.6 166.2 140.2

(26.7) (11.1) (8.7) Tax payable (492.2) (289.1) (256.1)

Change in work in progress, trade

0.0 0.0 0.0 Debtors and trade creditors (1 163.8) (264.7) (296.0)

16.5 2.1 2.8 Change in other accruals 800.0 (146.0) 288.6

(85.9) 498.7 43.6 net cash flow from operations 437.6 337.8 683.3

cash FloW From inVestments

0.0 0.0 0.0 Acquisitions (228.4) (8.5) (109.7)

0.0 0.0 0.0 Divestments 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 (0.1) Investments in tangible fixed assets (234.1) (176.1) (111.9)

0.0 0.7 0.0 Sale of tangible fixed assets (sales value) 16.3 9.9 50.8

Currency effects on tangible and 

0.0 0.0 0.0 intangible fixed assets (50.2) 26.6 8.2

1.2 0.0 1.9 Change in other investments (23.5) (15.2) (3.8)

1.2 0.7 1.8 net cash flow from investments (519.9) (163.3) (166.4)

cash FloW From caPital transactions

0.0 0.0 0.0 Change in overdrafts (5.6) 1.1 4.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 net cash flow from capital transactions (5.6) 1.1 4.0

liQuiDity

(85.9) 498.7 43.6 Net cash flow from operations 437.6 337.8 683.3

1.2 0.7 1.8 Net cash flow from investments (519.9) (163.3) (166.4)

0.0 0.0 0.0 Net cash flow from capital transactions (5.6) 1.1 4.0

(84.7) 499.4 45.4 net change in liquidity during the year (87.9) 175.6 520.9

940.1 440.7 395.3 Liquidity at 1 January 2 206.2 2 030.6 1 509.7

855.4 940.1 440.7 liquidity at 31 December 2 118.3 2 206.2 2 030.6

01 accounting PrinciPles

all amounts in noK million
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comPany
Business 

oFFice
share 

caPital
oWner-

shiP
BooK 

Value

Det Norske Veritas Holding AS Bærum 240 100% 240.0

revenue reCognition and work in progress.

Revenue from sale of services is recognised according to  
the percentage of completion method. Work in progress  
is recognised at estimated sales value. Movement in work  
in progress is included in operating revenue.
 Revenue from the sale of services is recognised in the 
income statement according to the project’s level of 
completion provided the outcome of the transaction can  
be estimated reliably. Progress is measured as the number  
of hours spent compared to the total number of hours 
estimated. When the outcome of the transaction cannot  
be estimated reliably, only revenue equal to the project 
costs that have been incurred will be recognised as revenue. 
The total estimated loss on a contract will be recognised  
in the income statement during the period when it is 
identified that a project will generate a loss.

ClassifiCation and valuation of assets and 

liabilities. Assets meant for permanent ownership or use 
are classified as fixed assets. Other assets are classified as 
current assets. Receivables to be paid within one year are 
always classified as current assets. Short- and long-term 
liabilities are classified correspondingly.
  Current assets are valued at the lower of cost and net 
realisable value. Short-term debt is recognised at nominal 
value at time of establishment.
 Fixed assets are valued at cost. However, if a decline  
in value is expected not to be temporary, fixed assets are 
written down to recoverable amount. Fixed assets with a 
limited useful economic life are depreciated in accordance 
with a linear depreciation plan. Long-term debt is recog-
nised at nominal value at time of establishment.

debtors. Trade receivables and other current receivables 
are recorded in the balance sheet at nominal value less 
provisions for doubtful debts. Provisions for doubtful  
debts are calculated on the basis of individual assessments. 
In addition, for the remainder of accounts receivables 
outstanding balances, a general provision is made to  
cover expected losses.

foreign CurrenCy. Monetary items denominated in a 
foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the 
balance sheet date. Financial instruments, mainly forward 
exchange contracts and currency swaps, are used to hedge 
all significant items denominated in the most common 
foreign currencies. These hedges are included at market 
value at 31 December.
 Realised and unrealised currency effects are included  
on a net basis in either other financial income or other 
financial expenses.
  Premiums paid for currency and interest rate options  
are capitalised and amortised over the life of the contract. 

finanCial investments. Financial investments not 
regarded as long-term are classified as current assets in the 
balance sheet. These short-term financial investments are 
valued at market value at the balance sheet date based on  
a portfolio assessment. Dividends and other distributions  
are recognized as other financial income.  

tax. The tax expense in the income statement includes 
taxes payable and change in deferred taxes. Deferred taxes 
are calculated based on the temporary differences existing 
between book values and tax values, together with tax  
loss carry-forwards at the end of the accounting period.  
Tax increasing and tax reducing temporary differences 
expected to reverse in the same period are offset and 
calculated on a net basis. Deferred tax assets are recognised 
to the extent utilisation of these assets can be justified. 

provisions. A provision is recognised when the Group has 
an obligation (legal or self-imposed) as a result of a previous 
event, it is probable (more likely than not) that a financial 
settlement will take place as a result of this obligation  
and the size of the amount can be measured reliably.  

Stifelsen Det Norske Veritas owns 100% of the shares in Det Norske Veritas Holding AS.

Det Norske Veritas Holding AS owns two subsidiaries 100%, Det Norske Veritas AS and Det Norske Veritas Eiendom AS. 
Det Norske Veritas AS has 99 subsidiaries. With the exception of some financial transactions, Det Norske Veritas is operating 
through Det Norske Veritas Holding AS and its subsidiaries around the world.

Long-term shareholdings where DNV does not exercise 
significant influence are recognised at cost. Each investment 
is written down to net realisable value if lower than cost.

property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are capitalised and depreci-
ated over the estimated useful economic life. Maintenance 
costs are expensed as incurred, whereas improvement and 
upgrading are assigned to the acquisition cost and depreci-
ated along with the asset. If carrying value of a non-current 
asset exceeds the estimated recoverable amount, the asset  
is written down to the recoverable amount. The recoverable 
amount is the greater of the net selling price and value in 
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash 
flows are discounted to their present value.

intangible assets. Intangible assets that have been 
acquired separately are carried at cost. The costs of 
intangible assets acquired through an acquisition are 
recognised at their fair value in the Group’s opening  
balance sheet. Capitalised intangible assets are recognised 
at cost less any amortisation and impairment losses.
 Internally generated intangible assets are not capitalised 
but are expensed as occurred.
 The economic life is either definite or indefinite. Intan-
gible assets with a definite economic life are amortised over 
their economic life and tested for impairment if there are 
any indications. The amortisation method and period are 
assessed at least once a year. Changes to the amortisation 
method and/or period are accounted for as a change in 
estimate.
 Intangible assets with an indefinite economic life are 
tested for impairment at least once a year, either individ-
ually or as a part of a cash-generating unit. 

goodwill. The difference between the cost of an acqui-
sition and the fair value of net identifiable assets on the 
acquisition date is recognised as goodwill. For investment  
in associates, goodwill is included in the investment’s 
carrying amount. 
 Goodwill is recognised at cost in the balance sheet,  
minus any accumulated depreciation. Goodwill is amortised 
linearly through the income statement over its expected 
useful economic life.

researCh and development. Research and develop-
ment costs are expensed when incurred.

pensions. Pension costs and pension liabilities for the 
defined benefit plans are estimated on the basis of linear 
earnings and assumptions of: discount rate, projected 
annual salary adjustments, pension and other payments 
from the national insurance fund, expected annual return 
on plan assets and actuarial assumptions of deaths, 
voluntary resignations etc. Plan assets are valued at fair 
value and deducted from net pension liabilities in the 
balance sheet. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised 
directly in the equity. 

If the effect is considerable, the provision is calculated by 
discounting estimated future cash flows using a discount 
rate before tax that reflects the market’s pricing of the  
time value of money and, if relevant, risks specifically linked 
to the obligation.
 If Det Norske Veritas Group is involved in litigation, and  
a claim has been made, then provisions for these claims  
are made in the accounts based on a best estimate of the 
validity and amount of the claim.

Cash flow statement. The cash flow statement is 
presented using the indirect method. Cash and cash 
equivalents includes cash, bank deposits and other  
short-term, highly liquid investments with maturities  
of three months or less.

 

Det norsKe Veritas – grouP

2008 2007 2006

Business area

Maritime 4 404.0 3 686.5 3 169.0

Energy 2 567.0 2 045.8 1 759.8

Industry 2 048.0 1 908.9 1 900.0

IT Global Services 289.0 264.0 246.5

Other 252.3 220.4 222.1

total operating revenue 9 560.3 8 125.6 7 297.4

geograPhical area

Nordic countries 3 513.8 2 900.6 2 572.1

Europe and Africa 2 325.3 2 191.6 2 044.5

Asia / Pacific 2 549.0 2 066.9 1 738.0

North and South America 1 172.1 966.5 942.8

total operating revenue 9 560.3 8 125.6 7 297.4

notes

02

03

suBsiDiaries oF stiFtelsen Det norsKe Veritas

oPerating reVenue
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name

salary & 
Functional
alloWance

other
BeneFits incentiVe Pay1)

Pension BeneFit 
earneD / 

cost to DnV

Henrik O. Madsen 3 863 270  428 229  159 061  1 322 591  

Tor E. Svensen 2 782 554  195 396  145 209  891 721  

Remi Eriksen 1 743 372  166 394  94 628  282 205  

Peter Bjerager2) 1 144 431  289 054  42 623  150 357  

Bjørn K. Haugland3) 633 087  65 958  0  143 622  

Annie Combelles 2 271 164  140 647  80 650  75 243  

Jostein Furnes 2 029 844  226 590  97 650  509 764  

Cecilie B. Heuch 1 423 242  159 981  62 036  48 574  

name loan amount interest rate
rePayment 

PerioD security

Henrik O. Madsen 3 398 400  2.50% Nov. 2028 Mortgage

Tor E. Svensen 632 200  2.50% Mar. 2028 Mortgage

Remi Eriksen 0  

Peter Bjerager2) 1 851 654  2.50% Nov. 2025 Mortgage

Bjørn K. Haugland3) 0  

Annie Combelles 0  

Jostein Furnes 2 529 314  2.50% July 2031 Mortgage

Cecilie B. Heuch 0  

name
statutory 

auDit
tax consulting 

serVices
other attest 

serVices
non-auDit 

serVices

Stiftelsen Det Norske Veritas 300 000 0 0 0

Group auditor other Norwegian entities 1 779 000 133 143 95 000 37 566

Group auditor non-Norwegian entities 6 930 649 1 178 139 57 804 0

Other auditors 3 855 056 727 534 58 135 46 308

Total 12 864 705 2 038 816 210 939 83 874

name                                            remuneration

Atle Bergshaven 347 916

C. Maury Devine 432 916

Mary Grace Anderson 0

John H. Wiik 177 084

Axel C. Eitzen 177 084

Tom Ruud 60 416

name                                            remuneration

Hilde Tonne 116 666

Audun Brandsæter 177 084

Niksa Padovan 177 084

Sille Grjotheim 177 084

Yan Ma 177 084

name                                   remuneration

Erling Øverland 72 000

Herbjørn Hansson 49 000

Georg Scheel 49 000
stiFtelsen Det norsKe Veritas Det norsKe Veritas – grouP

2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006

0.0 0.0 0.0 Travel expenses 730.6 640.0 558.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 Hired assistance 547.6 465.5 470.6

0.0 0.0 0.0 ICT and communication expenses 306.8 243.3 223.9

0.0 0.0 0.0 Loss on claim 48.6 5.6 9.6

0.0 0.0 0.0 Other expenses 1 563.1 1 347.2 1 250.4

0.0 0.0 0.0 total other operating expenses 3 196.8 2 701.6 2 512.5

President & Chief Executive Officer Henrik O. Madsen has an annual base salary of NOK 2 300 000, a functional allowance  
of NOK 1 380 000 and an incentive scheme with a maximum payment of 10% of his annual base salary.
 Madsen has a right to retire at 62 years with a yearly pension equal to 66% of his annual base salary at date of retirement.

4) Including compensation for travel time, NOK 150 000    5) NOK 235 083 has been donated to charity

loans at 31 Dec. 2008:

1) earned in 2007, paid in 2008    2) 01.01. - 31.07.    3) 01.08. - 31.12. 

4)

5)

Fees to the auDitors For 2008:

remunerations to the BoarD oF Directors PaiD out in 2008:
remuneration to the control 
committee PaiD out in 2008:

remunerations anD loans to the executiVe BoarD For 2008

remunerations:
Det Norske Veritas has both defined benefit pension plans 
and contribution pension plans. The defined benefit pension 
plans are covered through separate pension funds or through 
arrangements with insurance companies. The employees’ 
future pension benefits are based on the employee’s salary 
level at the time of retirement and on the number of years  
of membership. The basis for calculating the pension cost 
and the pension liabilities included in the accounts are shown 
in this note. Contributions to the Group’s pension plans are 
made in accordance with common actuarial methods in  
the country where the pension plan is administered. Total 
pension costs for 2008 are NOK 279.7 million, of which 

pension costs related to the defined benefit pension plans  
are NOK 141.8 million and pension costs related to the 
contribution pension plans are NOK 137.9 million.
 The Norwegian companies in the Group are subject to  
the Norwegain Pension Act. The companies’ pension shemes 
fulfil the requirements of the law. Norwegian employees are 
covered either by the Norwegian contribution pension plan 
(mainly employees employed after 1 January 2005), or the 
defined benefit pension plan organised in two Norwegian 
pension funds (employees employed before 1 January 2005). 
The pension assets in the two Norwegian pension funds are 
invested as follows:

stiFtelsen Det norsKe Veritas Det norsKe Veritas – grouP

2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006

0.0 0.0 0.0 Salaries 3 858.3 3 276.1 2 895.5

0.0 0.0 0.0 Payroll tax 550.1 472.7 402.2

0.0 0.0 0.0 Pension costs 279.7 316.6 242.3

0.0 0.0 0.0 Other contributions 298.5 319.6 310.6

0.0 0.0 0.0 total payroll expenses 4 986.6 4 385.0 3 850.6

0.0 Man years 8 557.0

0.0 Total incentive pay for 2008 86.7

04 Payroll exPenses

notes

05

06
07

other oPerating exPenses

remuneration anD loans to PresiDent & ceo, executiVe BoarD, BoarD oF Directors etc.

Pension costs, Plan assets anD DeFineD BeneFit Pension liaBilities
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stiFtelsen Det norsKe Veritas Det norsKe Veritas – grouP

2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006

(85.6) 8.2 49.7 Return on financial investments (154.5) 44.8 87.7

0.0 500.0 0.0 Dividend from subsidiaries 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 Profit from investment in associates 16.2 16.1 7.6

2.5 0.3 0.4 Net interest received from group companies 0.0 0.0 0.0

(0.1) 0.0 0.0 Other interest received 41.7 23.7 15.6

Currency gains (losses) 41.7 (46.9) (24.1)

7.5 (0.8) (0.6) Other financial items (27.0) (38.7) (55.4)

(75.7) 507.7 49.5 net financial income (expenses) (81.9) (1.0) 31.4

stiFtelsen Det norsKe Veritas Det norsKe Veritas – grouP

Purchase
 Price

marKet 
Value 

regulation
BooK 

Value 
Purchase

 Price

marKet 
Value 

regulation
BooK 

Value 

444.4 0.0 444.4 Money market funds 744.5 0.0 744.5

111.8 1.0 112.8 Bond funds 111.8 1.0 112.8

336.3 (59.3) 277.0 Equity funds 336.3 (59.2) 277.1

892.5 (58.3) 834.2 total short-term financial investments 1 192.6 (58.2) 1 134.4

FunDeD norWegian DeFineD
BeneFit Pension Plans

other DeFineD
BeneFit Pension Plans

2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006

Net present value of this year's pension contribution 127.8 130.8 135.1 38.9 48.8 48.8

Interest expense on pension liabilities 151.4 134.8 112.9 51.5 49.4 44.6

Expected return on plan assets (190.4) (165.4) (136.6) (49.4) (41.2) (38.1)

Payroll tax 12.5 14.1 15.7 0.0 0.0 0.0

Curtailment / pension plan changes 0.0 0.0 0.0 (0.7) (2.4) (33.0)

net pension cost 101.4 114.3 127.1 40.4 54.6 22.3

Plan assets anD Pension liaBilities:

Market value of plan assets 3 232.2 3 461.8 3 307.3 963.4 826.0 686.4

Actuarial present value of pension liabilities (3 500.1) (3 071.2) (3 038.2) (1 307.7) (1 059.9) (1 062.6)

Payroll tax (110.5) (17.7) (34.8) 0.0 0.0 0.0

net prepaid pension (liabilities) (378.5) 372.9 234.3 (344.3) (233.9) (376.2)

Hereof recorded as plan assets 0.0 372.9 234.3 0.0

Hereof recorded as pension liabilities (378.5) (344.3) (233.9) (376.2)

2008 2007 2006

Discount rate 4.5% 5.0% 4.5%

Projected annual salary adjustment 4.0% 4.5% 4.0%

Projected annual increase in pension benefit 2.0% 2.5% 2.0%

Projected annual increase of Norwegian government basis pension 3.0% 3.5% 3.0%

Expected annual return on plan assets 5.0% 5.5% 5.0%

The Group’s main financial market risks are liquidity risk, 
foreign currency risk, credit risk and interest rate risk.

liquidity risk. The Group monitors its liquidity risk on an 
ongoing basis. The liquidity planning considers the maturity 
of both the financial investments and financial assets (e.g. 
accounts receivable, other financial assets) and projected 
cash flows from operations.

foreign CurrenCy risk. The Group has revenues and 
expenses in about 70 currencies. Of these, five currencies 
(NOK, EUR, USD, KRW and GBP) make up for approximately 
75% of the total revenue. In many currencies DNV has a 
natural hedge through a balance of revenue and expenses. 
Major imbalances on the balance sheet are hedged through 
forward exchange contracts. As part of this hedging, DNV 
has forward exchange contracts in 23 currencies, totalling  
a net amount of about NOK 2 100 mill. The most important 
contracts are in USD (62%) and EUR (12%). Unrealized net 
loss at year end is NOK 381 mill.

In addition DNV has secured parts of its cash flow in 2009  
by selling EUR 36 mill and USD 36 mill forward (at average 
rates NOK/EUR 9.54 and NOK/USD 7.00). Unrealized net  
loss at year end is NOK 9 mill.

Credit risk. Receivable balances are monitored on an 
ongoing basis with the result that the Group’s exposure  
to bad debts is not significant. There are no significant 
concentrations of credit risk within the Group. With  
respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets  
of the Group, which comprises cash and cash equivalents, 
available-for-sale financial investments and certain 
derivative instruments, the Group’s exposure to credit risk 
arises from default of the counter-party, with a maximum 
exposure equal to the market value of these instruments.

interest rate risk. The Group’s exposure to the risk  
of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to  
the Group’s short-term financial investments and forward 
exchange contracts.

the Final calculation oF the Pension liaBilities in norWay is BaseD on the FolloWing assumPtions:

Ordinary retirement age in Det Norske Veritas is 67 years. Some managers and employees are entitled to retire before the age of 67.

 31 Dec 08  31 Dec 07  31 Dec 06

Buildings and property 234.5 217.8 203.3

Mutual equity funds and hedge funds 884.0 1 206.9 907.8

Norwegian bonds and bond funds 326.7 292.0 478.3

Non-Norwegian bonds and bond funds 228.6 151.1 308.6

Bank accounts, other assets and liabilities 1 558.4 1 594.0 1 409.3

total market value of plan assets 3 232.2 3 461.8 3 307.3

actual return on plan assets (337.3) 161.4 303.5

marKet Value oF Plan assets in norWay

notes

08 short-term Financial inVestments   
   

09

10

Financial income anD Financial exPenses

Financial marKet risK



70 71

stiFtelsen
Det norsKe Veritas

Det norsKe Veritas
grouP

2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006

tax expense consists of:

16.3 11.1 8.7 Norwegian wealth tax 16.3 11.1 8.7

10.4 0.0 0.0 Norwegian income tax 224.4 53.1 48.6

0.0 0.0 0.0 Income tax outside Norway 251.5 224.9 198.8

26.7 11.1 8.7 Total tax payable 492.2 289.1 256.1

0.5 3.0 0.9 Change in deferred tax in Norway (41.3) 38.4 7.6

0.0 0.0 0.0 Change in deferred tax outside Norway 13.8 8.1 16.0

0.5 3.0 0.9 Total change in deferred tax (27.5) 46.5 23.6

27.2 14.1 9.6 tax expense 464.7 335.6 279.7

Effective tax rate 42% 38% 34%

(21.2) Tax on profit at 28% 309.8 244.1 231.1

Tax effect of:

0.0 Foreign tax exempt branches (19.3) (12.5) (11.1)

0.0 Changes of previous years taxes 23.0 0.0 0.0

16.3 Wealth tax 16.3 11.1 8.7

0.0 Tax assets not recognized current year 14.0 17.3 23.3

0.0 Differences betw. tax rates in Norway and abroad 26.1 15.9 18.6

32.1 Permanent differences 94.8 59.7 9.1

27.2 tax expense 464.7 335.6 279.7

net tax-reducing/tax-increasing 

temporary differences:

0.0 0.2 (0.1) Fixed assets (751.8) (30.5) (181.3)

0.0 0.0 0.0 Current assets 56.4 22.3 4.2

0.0 0.0 0.0 Liabilities (930.5) (317.3) (418.7)

0.0 (1.8) (12.0) Tax loss to be carried forward 0.0 (1.8) (12.0)

0.0 (1.6) (12.1) Basis for deferred tax asset / liability (1 625.9) (327.3) (607.8)

28% 28% 28% Tax rates applied 10%-43% 10%-43% 10%-43%

0.0 (0.4) (3.5) Deferred tax asset (486.8) (130.4) (198.6)

0.0 0.0 0.0 Deferred tax liability 15.7 21.1 8.7

comPany acQuireD
Purchase
currency

acQuisition
cost local

currency

external 
reVenue incl. 

in 2008 acct. 
noK

Global Energy Concepts Inc June 2008 USD 31.1 95.3

Jardine Technology Ltd August 2008 GBP 1.2 3.7

comPany / Business actiVity

gooDWill
cost at 

1 jan.

accum. 
DePr.
1 jan.

reVal.
eFFects

this 
year’s

aDDitions

this 
year's

DePr.
Write
DoWn 

gooDWill
31 Dec.

Global Energy Concepts Inc 0.0 0.0 (3.7) 155.9 (14.5) 137.7 

Jardine Technology Ltd. 0.0 0.0 0.0 12.3 (1.0) 11.3 

Rutherford Holding Ltd (Jardine Group) 24.2 (14.5) (0.4) (4.7) 4.6

CC Technologies Inc. 45.5 (26.2) 3.2 (9.4) 13.2 

Healthcare 11.4 (0.9) 2.4 (2.3) 10.5 

Tireno Innovations AG 26.5 (10.6) 0.4 (5.4) (10.9) 0.0 

Alpha Miljørådgivning 4.0 (2.4) 0.0 (0.8) 0.8 

Primalux Technology 6.4 (3.9) 0.1 (1.4) (1.4) 0.0 

CIBIT B.V. 46.1 (15.4) 5.1 (9.5) 26.3 

Quality-Laboratories Sweden AB Group 20.0 (5.7) 0.7 (4.0) 11.0 

total 184.2 (79.6) 7.9 168.2 (53.0) (12.2) 215.4 

comPany / intangiBle assets  
cost at 

1 jan.

accum. 
DePr.
1 jan.

reVal.
eFFects

this 
year’s

aDDitions

this 
year's

DePr.

BooK
Value

31 Dec.

Norwegian Maritime Advisors - Technology 2.0 (0.2) 0.0 0.0 (0.4) 1.4 

Tüv Healthcare Inc - License 7.1 (0.6) 1.5 0.0 (1.5) 6.5 

Global Energy Concepts Inc - Customer relations 0.0 0.0 (0.6) 24.6 (2.3) 21.8 

total 9.1 (0.8) 0.9 24.6 (4.1) 29.7 

Opening balance 1 January 2008 43.7

Profit from investment in associates 16.2

investment in associates 31 December 2008 59.9

Goodwill is depreciated linearly over a 5 year period, based on an evaluation of economic life. Due to lower financial results 
from Tireno Innovations AG than assumed at the time of acquisition, the remaining goodwill value on the balance sheet has 
been written down with NOK 10.9 million in 2008. 

Other intangible assets are depreciated linearly over a 5 year period, based on evaluation of economic life.

Det Norske Veritas Holding AS owns 50% of Coor Service Management AS. The investement is recognised in accordance with 
the equity method in Det Norske Veritas Group accounts.

notes

11 13

14

15

12

tax gooDWill 

other intangiBle assets

inVestment in associates

changes in the grouP structure
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lanD. BuilDings
anD other

ProPerty

oFFice eQuiP-
ment. Fixtures

anD Fittings

Cost at 1 January 2008 1 328.2 1 641.1

Revaluation effects 11.6 30.8

Additions from acquisitions in 2008 0.0 7.8

Other additions in 2008 51.8 174.5

Disposals in 2008 (6.0) (9.0)

Accumulated depreciation at 31 December 2008 (443.3) (1 466.2)

Book value at 31 December 2008 942.3 378.9

Depreciation 2008 16.8 102.4

Economic life 20-100 years 3-10 years

Depreciation plan Linear Linear

comPany oWnershiP BooK Value

Røisheim Eiendom AS 4.1% 0.3

shares owned by stiftelsen Det norske Veritas 0.3

Hua-Eng-Wei International Testing Co. Ltd 49.0% 8.8

Ship Manoeuvring Simulator Center AS 40.0% 1.8

Vité Inc 15.1% 0.0

TT Holding AS 11.3% 0.0

SA Isoscope 10.0% 0.0

Marintek AS 9.0% 0.0

Hytrec AS 22.0% 0.0

Kapnord Fond AS 4.7% 1.7

CCS-DNV Technology Institute 50.0% 5.4

Blade Test Centre AS 25.0% 4.6

shares owned by subsidiaries 22.3

total long-term shareholdings 22.6

Det Norske Veritas Eiendom AS has a tenancy agreement with Det Norske Veritas Pension Fund for an office building in Stavanger. 
In 2008 the rent amounted to NOK 10 million. The tenancy agreement is nonterminable for 30 years starting in 1984.  
 Det Norske Veritas Pension Fund has an option to sell the property to Det Norske Veritas for NOK 147.0 million  
at the end of the period (year 2014). 

Det norsKe Veritas – grouP

2008 2007 2006

Advances from customers 695.4 543.3 468.7 

Accrued expenses 567.4 512.4 590.8 

Accrued holiday allowances 281.5 220.2 186.9 

Unrealized loss (gain) and interest related to forward contracts 372.6 (70.4) 7.1 

Other short-term liabilities 99.9 56.4 62.8 

total other short-term liabilities 2 016.8 1 261.9 1 316.3 

Det norsKe Veritas – grouP

2008 2007 2006

Loans to employees 70.2 67.4 64.0

Other long-term receivables 261.2 197.9 188.5

total other long-term receivables 331.4 265.3 252.5

Det Norske Veritas Holding AS has entered into an agreement 
for a corporate bank account system with DnB NOR Bank ASA, 
where most of DNV’s legal entities participate. The agreement 
includes an overdraft facility of NOK 50 million.
Det Norske Veritas AS has entered into an agreement for a  
cash pool system with ABN Amro, where most of DNV’s legal 
entities in the Euro countries participate. The agreement 
includes an overdraft facility of EUR 2.75 million, guaranteed  
by Det Norske Veritas Holding AS.
 Det Norske Veritas AS has entered into an agreement for  

Det Norske Veritas Holding AS has an agreement for a NOK 750 
million multi-currency revolving credit facility with an interna-
tional bank syndicate. The facility expires in January 2009. The 
facility is undrawn as per year-end 2008, and will not be renewed.
 The credit agreement supporting this facility includes a 
negative pledge clause, and also restrict Det Norske Veritas’ 

a cash pool system with Handelsbanken, where all legal 
entities in Sweden participate. The agreement includes an 
overdraft facility of SEK 10 million.
 Balances on bank accounts participating in the corporate bank 
account system/cash pooling systems are considered as internal 
assets or liabilities vis-à-vis other DNV participants. For DNV on 
a consolidated basis, the net total balance of NOK 347.2 million 
is with DnB NOR Bank ASA, EUR 0.6 million with ABN Amro 
and SEK 13.7 million is with Handelsbanken are included in 
Cash and bank deposits in the balance sheet at 31 December.

ability to freely dispose of main real estate holdings and 
principal subsidiaries. The credit agreement further requires 
that DNV on a consolidated basis maintains a certain 
minimum level of equity and that the net interest bearing 
debt does not exceed a set level relative to the equity. 
DNV was well within these limits at year-end.

FounDation
caPital

other
eQuity

stiFtelsen
DnV

suBsiDi-
aries oF 

stiFtelsen 
DnV

DnV 
grouP

Equity 31 December 2007 283.5 875.0 1 158.5 3 333.5 4 492.0

Change in unrecognised net loss defined

benefit pension plans 2008 (720.0) (720.0)

Foreign currency translation 218.4 218.4

(Gross) loss on hedge of net investments (120.6) (120.6)

Tax effect from hedging of net investments  
in foreign subsidiaries 33.8 33.8

Profit for the year (102.9) (102.9) 744.5 641.6

equity 31 December 2008 283.5 772.1 1 055.6 3 489.6 4 545.2

stiFtelsen Det norsKe Veritas Det norsKe Veritas – grouP

2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006

0.0 0.0 0.0
Guarantee commitments 
not included in the accounts 45.2 26.7 18.2

notes
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20

22

23

21

FixeD assets

long-term shareholDings

other short-term liaBilities

other long-term receiVaBles 

cash anD BanK DePosits

guarantees

eQuity

BanK loans
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We have audited the annual financial 
statements of Stiftelsen Det Norske Veritas 
as of 31 December 2008, showing a loss  
of NOK 102,9 million  for the Foundation 
and a  profit of NOK 641,6 million for the 
Group. We have also audited the infor-
mation in the Directors’ report concerning 
the financial statements, the going concern 
assumption, and the proposal for the 
coverage of the loss. The financial state-
ments comprise the financial statements 
for the Foundation and the Group. The 
financial statements of the Foundation 
and the Group comprise the balance sheet, 
the statements of income and cash flows, 
and the accompanying notes. The regula-
tions of the Norwegian Accounting Act 
and accounting standards, principles and 
practices generally accepted in Norway 
have been applied in the preparation of 
the financial statements of the Foundation 
and the Group. These financial statements 
and the Directors’ report are the respon-
sibility of the Foundation’s Board of 
Directors and President and Chief 
Executive Officer. Our responsibility is  
to express an opinion on these financial 
statements and on other information 
according to the requirements of the 
Norwegian Act on Auditing and Auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with 
laws, regulations and auditing standards 
and practices generally accepted in Norway, 
including the auditing standards adopt-
ed by the Norwegian Institute of Public 
Accountants. Those auditing standards 
require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements 
are free of material misstatement. An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements.  
An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and signifi-
cant estimates made by management,  
as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. To the extent 
required by law and auditing standards, 
an audit also comprises a review of the 
management of the Foundation’s financial 
affairs and its accounting and internal 
control systems. We believe that our  
audit provides a reasonable basis for  
our opinion.

In our opinion,
 the financial statements of the Foun-

dation and the Group are prepared in 
accordance with laws and regulations  

and present fairly, in all material respects 
the financial position of the Foundation  
and the Group as of 31 December 2008,  
and the results of the operations and cash 
flows for the year then ended, in accordance 
with accounting standards, principles and 
practices generally accepted in Norway.

 the Foundation’s management has 
fulfilled its duty to properly record and 
document the Foundation’s accounting 
information as required by law and generally 
accepted bookkeeping practice in Norway.

 the information in the Directors’ report 
concerning the financial statements,  
the going concern assumption, and the 
proposal for the coverage of  the loss is 
consistent with the financial statements  
and complies with law and regulations.

Nothing has come to our attention that 
causes us to believe that the asset man-
agement of the Foundation has not been 
made in accordance with law, the object  
of the Foundation and its statutes.

Oslo, 16 April 2009

ERNST & YOUNG AS

Knut Aker (sign.)
State Authorised Public Accountant 
(Norway)

Note: The translation to English has been 
prepared for information purposes only.

GRI content index
scoPe anD BounDary oF the rePort

The selection of reporting parameters is 
based on an assessment of materiality for 
all GRI indicators. Due regard has been 
given to their relevance to DNV and DNV’s 
stakeholders. The indicators reflect both 
opportunities and challenges for DNV being 
a professional service provider with the 
purpose of safeguarding life, property 
and the environment. DNV’s work with 
Corporate Responsibility uses a risk-based 
approach in prioritising and defining 
activities to ensure continuous improve-
ment within focus areas such as corporate 
governance, ethics, transparency, health, 
safety and the environment. These activ-
ities are reported upon. This report also 
takes into account our reporting commit-
ment to the UN Global Compact, and our 
communication of progress is integrated 
with the GRI content index.

DNV has applied the GRI guidelines (G3)  
in preparing this annual report. The finan-
cial review has been prepared in accordance 
with the Norwegian Accounting Act and 
accounting principles generally accepted 
in Norway. Information on accounting 
principles applied to subsidiaries is given 
in the notes to the financial statements. 

Environmental performance indicators  
for energy consumption are limited to the 
ten largest sites covering approximately 
47% of DNV’s employees. Emissions from 
energy consumption are calculated for  
the five largest sites. DNV is continuously 
working to extend this environmental 
reporting to cover more sites. 

The GRI content index shows where  
you can find information on the main 
reporting elements and indicators of  
the GRI and the UN Global Compact. 
References are also made to informa-
tion that can be found on our web site:  
www.dnv.com. The number of indicators 
reported upon has increased since 2007  
as a result of continuous focus on trans-
parency in reporting. The indicators that 
are not reported upon are listed at the 
end of the index.

appliCation level:
DNV has assessed this report against the 
criteria in the GRI Application Levels and 
rates this report at Level B. This applica-
tion level has been verified by the GRI. 
The annual financial statements have 
been audited by Ernst & Young AS.

This Annual Report presents DNV’s financial, social and environmental 
performance in line with guidelines established by the Global  
Reporting Initiative (GRI). DNV’s vision for “global impact for  
a safe and sustainable future” is reflected throughout the report.
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